
Pursuant�to�Governor�Newsom’s�Executive�Order�N-29-20,�members�of�the�Board�of�Directors,�staff�and�public�may�participate�in�
this�meeting�via�teleconference�and/or�electronically.�The�Oceano�Community�Services�District�Boardroom�will�NOT�be�open�for�

accessing�the�meeting.�

�

� � �
�

Notice�of�Regular�Meeting�
Oceano�Community�Services�District�-�Board�of�Directors�Agenda�

WEDNESDAY,�FEBRUARY�10,�2021�–�6:00�P.M�
Location:�TELECONFERENCE�–�SEE�BELOW�

�
HOW�TO�OBSERVE�THE�MEETING�

�
This�meeting�will�be�conducted�using�Zoom�software,�which�requires�a�name/email�to�be�entered�prior�to�accessing�the�meeting.�

This�is�not�a�District�requirement�for�participation.�Public�participants�are�welcome�to�use�an�anonymous�name/email�if�preferred.�

Telephone:��Listen�to�the�meeting�live�by�dialing�(669)�900-9128�or�(253)�215-8782.��Enter�Meeting�ID#�892-6279-7188�followed�

by�the�pound�(#)�key.��Then�enter�the�Password:�508435�followed�by�the�pound�(#)�key.��If�the�line�is�busy,�additional�phone�

numbers�can�be�found�on�Zoom’s�website�at�https://zoom.us/u/abb4GNs5xM�

Computer:��With�internet�access�use�the�Password:�508435�to�watch�the�live�streaming�at�

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89262797188?pwd=Q2lUeVc5THhnZk10TEtOUTlTcXRiZz09��or�by�going�to�zoom.us�and�selecting�

“Join�A�Meeting”�then�entering�the�Meeting�ID#�892-6279-7188�followed�by�the�Password:�508435�

Mobile:��Log�in�through�the�Zoom�Mobile�App�on�a�smartphone�or�tablet�and�enter�Meeting�ID#:�892-6279-7188�then�enter�the�

Password:�508435.�

For�information�on�Zoom’s�system�requirements�please�visit:�https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362023-System-

Requirements-for-PC-Mac-and-Linux�

HOW�TO�SUBMIT�PUBLIC�COMMENTS�
�

Before�the�Meeting:��Please�email�your�comments�to�carey@oceanocsd.org�with�“Public�Comment”�in�the�subject�line.�In�your�

email�please�include�the�agenda�item�number�and�title�and�your�comments.��You�may�also�provide�public�comment�through�the�

District�website�at:�https://oceanocsd.org/contact/.��All�comments�received�before�12:00�p.m.�the�day�of�the�meeting�will�be�

included�as�an�agenda�supplement�on�the�District’s�website�https://oceanocsd.org/meeting-agendas-minutes/agenda-packets/�

and�provided�to�the�Directors�prior�to�the�meeting.�Comments�received�after�the�deadline,�but�prior�to�the�meeting�start�time,�will�

be�attached�to�the�minutes�of�the�meeting.�

Live�Comments:��During�the�meeting,�the�Board�President�or�designee�will�announce�the�opportunity�for�public�comment.��

Members�of�the�public�may�utilize�the�“raise�hand”�feature�in�Zoom�to�be�placed�into�the�speaking�queue.��Each�individual�

speaker�is�limited�to�a�presentation�time�of�THREE�(3)�minutes�per�item.�Persons�wishing�to�speak�on�more�than�one�item�shall�

limit�his/her�remarks�to�a�total�of�SIX�(6)�minutes.�This�time�may�be�allocated�between�items�in�one-minute�increments�up�to�

three�minutes.�Time�limits�may�not�be�yielded�to�or�shared�with�other�speakers.�

To�“Raise�Hand:”�

·� Telephone:�Prese�“�*�9�”�to�raise�your�hand�to�notify�meeting�host�and�be�placed�in�the�queue.��The�host�will�unmute�

and�call�on�you�when�it’s�your�time�to�speak.�

·� Computer/Mobile�Device:�Click�the�“raise�hand”�button�to�notify�meeting�host�and�be�placed�in�the�queue.��The�host�

will�unmute�and�call�on�you�when�it’s�your�time�to�speak.��If�the�“raise�hand”�button�is�not�displayed�on�the�screen,�

please�click�the�“participants”�icon�at�the�bottom�of�the�screen�and�the�“raise�hand”�button�will�appear.�

All�items�on�the�agenda�including�information�items,�may�be�deliberated.�Any�member�of�the�public�with�an�interest�in�one�of�
these�items�should�review�the�background�material�and�request�information�on�the�possible�action�that�could�be�taken.�
�
�
�
�
�
�

February 10, 2021 - Page 1 of 56



�

�
Public�comment�Members�of�the�public�wishing�to�speak�on�consent�agenda�items�may�do�so�when�
recognized�by�the�Presiding�Officer.��If�a�member�of�the�public�wishes�to�speak�at�this�time,�Public�comment�is�
limited�to�three�(3)�minutes.�

This�public�comment�period�provides�an�opportunity�for�members�of�the�public�to�address�the�Board�on�matters�
discussed�during�Special�Presentations�and�Reports.�If�a�member�of�the�public�wishes�to�speak�at�this�time,�Public�
comment�is�limited�to�three�(3)�minutes.�
�

This�public�comment�period�provides�an�opportunity�for�members�of�the�public�to�address�the�Board�on�matters�of�
interest�within�the�jurisdiction�of�the�District�that�are�not�listed�on�the�agenda.��If�a�member�of�the�public�wishes�to�speak�
at�this�time,�Public�comment�is�limited�to�three�(3)�minutes.�
�

Public�comment�Members�of�the�public�wishing�to�speak�on�business�items�may�do�so�when�recognized�by�
the�Presiding�Officer.��If�a�member�of�the�public�wishes�to�speak�at�this�time,�Public�comment�is�limited�to�three�(3)�
minutes.�

1.� CALL�TO�ORDER�� � �

2.� ROLL�CALL�

3.� FLAG�SALUTE�

4.� AGENDA�REVIEW�

5.� PUBLIC�COMMENT�ON�MATTERS�NOT�ON�THE�AGENDA��

6.� SPECIAL�PRESENTATIONS�&�REPORTS:��

A.� STAFF�REPORTS:�

i.� Sheriff’s�South�Station�-�Commander�Jay�Wells�

ii.� FCFA�Operations�-�Chief�Steve�Lieberman�

iii.� Operations�–�Utility�System�Manager�Tony�Marraccino��

iv.� OCSD�General�Manager�–�Will�Clemens�

�

B.� BOARD�OF�DIRECTORS�AND�OUTSIDE�COMMITTEE�REPORTS:�

i.� Director�Villa�

ii.� Director�Gibson�

iii.� Vice�President�White�

iv.� President�Austin�

v.� Director�Replogle����

C.� PUBLIC�COMMENT�ON�SPECIAL�PRESENTATIONS�AND�REPORTS:�

�

7.� CONSENT�AGENDA�ITEMS:�

A.� Review�and�Approval�of�Minutes�for�Regular�Meeting�January�27,�2020.�

B.� Review�of�Cash�Disbursements��

C.� Approval�of�a�grant�agreement�with�the�Integrated�Waste�Management�Authority�for�the�Technical�

Assistance�Grant�Program�and�a�budget�adjustment�in�the�Garbage�Fund�in�the�amount�of�$10,000�

from�grant�revenues�and�$10,000�from�contingencies�reserves�

�

8.� BUSINESS�ITEMS:��

�
�

�
� ��

�

� �

� �
�

February 10, 2021 - Page 2 of 56

11. LATE�RECEIVED�WRITTEN�COMMUNICATIONS:�

10. RECEIVED�WRITTEN�COMMUNICATIONS:

9. HEARING�ITEMS:��

A. Introduction�of�an�Ordinance�Repealing�and�Restating�District�Code�15.10 the Sale of Fireworks�



�

13.�FUTURE�HEARING�ITEMS:�

14.�CLOSED�SESSION:��

15.�ADJOURNMENT:��

�
This� agenda� was� prepared� and� posted� pursuant� to� Government� Code� Section� 54954.2.� Agenda� is� posted� at� the� Oceano�
Community�Services�District,�1655�Front�Street,�Oceano,�CA.��Agenda�and�reports�can�be�accessed�and�downloaded�from�the�
Oceano�Community�Services�District�website�at�www.oceanocsd.org���

ASSISTANCE�FOR�THE�DISABLED�If�you�are�disabled�in�any�way�and�need�accommodation�to�participate�in�the�Board�
meeting,�please�call�the�Clerk�of�the�Board�at�(805)�481-6730�for�assistance�at�least�three�(3)�working�days�prior�to�the�meeting�
so�necessary�arrangements�can�be�made.�

12.�FUTURE�AGENDA�ITEMS�Deferred�Infrastructure�Program,�Lopez�Water�Contract�Amendments,�Wastewater�CIP,�The�

Place,�EIR�State�Parks�PWP,�Old�Firehouse�Art,�California�Voting�Rights�Act,�District�Flag�Policy/�Pride�Month,�Social�Media�

Policy/�Live�Stream�Board�Meetings,�Bill�insert/�mailing�policy�

February 10, 2021 - Page 3 of 56



�

�

Oceano�Community�Services�District�
Summary�Minutes��

Regular�Meeting�Wednesday,�January�27,�2021�–�6:00�P.M.�
Location:�TELECONFERENCE�

�
1.� CALL�TO�ORDER:�at�approximately�6:05�p.m.�by�President�Austin��
2.� ROLL�CALL:��Board�members�present:�President�Austin,�Vice�President�White,�Director�Gibson,�and�

Director�Replogle.�Staff�present:�General�Manager�Will�Clemens,�Business�and�Accounting�Manager,�Carey�
Casciola�and�Jeff�Minnery,�Legal�Counsel.��Director�Villa�arrived�after�item�4.�

3.� FLAG�SALUTE:�led�by�President�Austin.�
4.� AGENDA�REVIEW:��
� A�motion�was�made�by�Vice�President�White�to�approve�the�agenda�as�presented�with�a�second�from�

Director�Replogle�and�a�4-0�vote.�Director�Villa�was�not�yet�in�attendance.�
5.� PUBLIC�COMMENT�ON�MATTERS�NOT�ON�THE�AGENDA:�

Public�comment�was�received�from:�

Julie�Tacker� Comments�regarding�the�Central�Coast�Blue�project.�

�

6.� SPECIAL�PRESENTATIONS�&�REPORTS:�

� A.�STAFF�REPORTS:�

i.� Sheriff’s�South�Station�–�Absent�
ii.� FCFA�-�Chief�Steve�Lieberman�–�Absent�
iii.� Operations�-�Utility�Systems�Manager,�Tony�Marraccino:��Preparing�for�the�upcoming�storm;�

currently�no�flooding�at�13th�St.�and�Hwy�1�due�to�the�County�drainage�project.��Some�flooding�
on�Juanita�Ave.�and�the�County�has�posted�signs.��Sandbags�are�available�outside�the�office�
and�sand�is�located�at�13th�St.�and�Warner.��Continuing�with�daily�rounds;�weekly�and�monthly�
samples;�8�work�orders;�9�USAs;�5�customer�service�calls;�1�after�hour�call�out;�The�sewer�
lateral�on�16th�St.�has�been�replaced�and�slurry�is�pending�the�weather.��Completed�meter�
reads,�comment�codes,�leak�notifications�and�re-reads.��A�fire�occurred�on�Strand�Ave.�
requiring�the�water�to�be�shut�off�due�to�damaged�water�lines�within�the�home.��Continuing�to�
replace�meters�and�recycled�old�meters.��

iv.� OCSD�General�Manager�–�Will�Clemens�–�Announcements�regarding�the�upcoming�storm�-�
sandbags�and�sand�is�available�to�the�community.��County�of�SLO�issued�a�news�release�
regarding�flooding�and�potential�evacuation�for�certain�areas�and�the�alert�systems.��Ethics�
and�Sexual�Harassment�training�is�being�completed�by�staff�and�Board�members.��Board�
Member�Form�700�is�due�by�April�1,�2021.�
�

B.� BOARD�OF�DIRECTORS�AND�OUTSIDE�COMMITTEE�REPORTS:��
i.� Director�Villa�–�Reported�on�the�1/21/2021�Oceano�Advisory�Council�(OAC)�meeting.�
ii.� Director�Gibson�–�Reported�on�the�1/27/2021�Ad�Hoc�Sub�Committee�for�Water�

Resources�Advisory�Committee�(WRAC)�meeting�and�the�1/14/2021�joint�meeting�
with�the�Central�Coast�Water�Authority�and�the�State�Water�Subcontractor�Advisory�
Committee.�Reported�on�the�1/21/2021�Zone�3�meeting.�

iii.� Vice�President�White�–�Reported�on�the�1/15/2021�Five�Cities�Fire�Authority�(FCFA)�
Meeting.�

iv.� Director�Replogle�–�Reported�on�the�Integrated�Waste�Management�Authority�(IWMA)�
meeting.�

v.� President�Austin�–�None�
�
�
�
�
��

Agenda Item 7A February 10, 2021 - Page 4 of 56



�

�

��
C.� PUBLIC�COMMENT�ON�SPECIAL�PRESENTATIONS�AND�REPORTS:�

Public�comment�was�received�from:�
�
Julie�Tacker� Comment�on�the�Form�700.��Comment�regarding�the�

Central�Coast�Blue�project.��Comment�regarding�the�
flooding�on�Juanita�Ave.�

�
7.�CONSENT�AGENDA:� ACTION:�
a.� Review�and�Approval�of�Minutes�for�Regular�

Meeting�January�13,�2021.��
b.� Review�of�cash�disbursements.�
c.� Authorize�the�President�to�sign�a�Conflict�Waiver�

regarding�the�Integrated�Waste�Management�
Authority’s�Technical�Assistance�Grant�

d.� Consideration�of�a�letter�requesting�access�to�
federal�Emergency�Rental�Assistance�program�for�
District�customers.�
�

After�an�opportunity�for�public�comment�and�Board�
discussion,�staff�recommendations�were�approved�with�
the�revision�to�7(a)�provided�in�the�addendum�with�a�
motion�from�Director�Gibson,�with�a�second�from�Vice�
President�White�and�a�5-0�roll�call�vote.�

�
�
Public�Comment:�
None�

�
8A.�BUSINESS�ITEM:� ACTION:�

Discussion/Action�Regarding�Refinancing�of�the�District’s�
Outstanding�California�Public�Employees�Retirement�
System�(CalPERS)�Unfunded�Accrued�Liability�(UAL)�
and�Appointing�Financial�Consultants.���

�

After�an�opportunity�for�public�comment,�Board�
discussion,�and�a�presentation�by�Dmitry�Semenov�of�
CalMuni�Advisors�a�motion�was�made�to�approve�
engagement�with�the�consultants�with�an�agreement�
approval�by�the�General�Manger,�drafted�by�legal�
counsel�and�signed�by�the�Board�President�with�a�
motion�from�Director�Gibson�with�a�second�from�Vice�
President�White�and�a�5-0�roll�call�vote.�

�
Public�Comment:�
Julie�Tacker�–�Commented�on�the�order�of�Business�����
Items�as�presented�and�consultant�solicitation.�

8B.�BUSINESS�ITEM:� ACTION:�
Discussion/Action�Regarding�Adoption�of�a�Debt�
Management�Policy�
�

After�an�opportunity�for�public�comment�and�Board�
discussion,�staff�recommendations�were�approved�with�
a�motion�from�Director�Gibson�to�adopt�a�Debt�
Management�Policy,�with�a�second�from�Vice�
President�White�and�a�5-0�roll�call�vote.�
�
Public�Comment:�
Julie�Tacker�–�Commented�on�order�of�Business�Items�
as�presented.�
�

8C.�BUSINESS�ITEM:� ACTION:�
Review�of�the�District’s�Budget�Status�as�of�December�
31,�2020.�

After�an�opportunity�for�public�comment�and�Board�
discussion�the�report�was�received�and�filed.�
�
�Public�Comment:�
�None�

�
9.�������HEARING�ITEMS:�None�
�
10.�����RECEIVED�WRITTEN�COMMUNICATIONS:�None�

Agenda Item 7A February 10, 2021 - Page 5 of 56



�

�

�
11.�����LATE�RECEIVED�WRITTEN�COMMUNICATIONS:�

Allene�Villa,�Oceano�Advisory�Council� A�letter�to�State�Parks,�posted�as�an�addendum�to�the�

OCSD�website.�

�
12.�����FUTURE�AGENDA�ITEMS:�Continued,�Deferred�Infrastructure�Program,�Lopez�Water�Contract�Amendments,�

Wastewater�CIP,�The�Place,�EIR�State�Parks�PWP,�Old�Firehouse�Art,�California�Voting�Rights�Act,�Fireworks�
Ordinance,�District�Flag�Policy/�Pride�Month,�Social�Media�Policy�/�Live�Stream�Board�Meetings,�Bill�
insert/mailing�policy.�

�
13.�����FUTURE�HEARING�ITEMS:�None�
�
14.�����CLOSED�SESSION:�None�
�
��15.�����ADJOURNMENT:�at�approximately�7:50�pm��

Agenda Item 7A February 10, 2021 - Page 6 of 56



Date: February 10, 2021

To: Board of Directors

From: Carey Casciola, Business and Accounting Manager

Subject: Agenda Item #7(B): Recommendation to Review Cash Disbursements

Recommendation

It is recommended that your board review the attached cash disbursements:

Discussion

The following is a summary of the attached cash disbursements:

Description Amounts

58807 - 58826
Disbursements:

Regular Payable Reigster - paid 02/03/2021 58807 - 58820 14,441.54$         

Subtotal: 14,441.54$         

Reoccurring Payments for Board Review (authorized by Resolution 2020-06):

Payroll Disbursements - PPE 01/30/2021 31,544.34$         

Board Member Stipends - December 2020 - January 2021 968.85$              

Reoccurring Utility Disbursements - paid 02/03/2021 58821 - 58824 4,633.79$           

Reoccurring Health Disbursements - paid 02/03/2021 58825 - 58826 10,576.12$         

Subtotal: 47,723.10$         

Grand Total: 62,164.64$         

Other Agency Involvement

N/A

Other Financial Considerations

Amounts are within the authorized Fund level budgets.

Results

Check Sequence

The Board's review of cash disbursements is an integral component of the District's system of internal controls and 

promotes a well governed community.

N/A

N/A

Oceano Community Services District

1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475

PHONE(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836

Agenda Item 7B February 10, 2021 - Page 7 of 56



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

L
E

G
A

L
 -

 G
E

N
L

 &
 G

R
O

U
N

D
W

A
T

E
R

 L
IT

IG
A

T
IO

N

R
E

IM
B

U
R

S
A

B
L

E
 -

 M
E

T
E

R
S

 F
O

R
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

A
N

N
U

A
L

 M
E

M
B

E
R

S
H

IP
 D

U
E

S

M
O

N
T

H
L

Y
 S

T
D

  
B

K
U

P

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

W
H

E
E

L
IN

G
 S

V
C

S
, 
N

O
V

-J
A

N
 2

0
2

1

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 -

 D
E

C
 2

0
2

0

IN
V

E
N

T
O

R
Y

, 
R

E
IM

B
U

R
S

A
B

L
E

 S
U

P
P

L
IE

S

A
S

P
H

A
L

T
 R

E
C

Y
C

L
E

S
Y

S
T

E
M

 P
A

R
T

S

F
U

E
L

P
O

S
T

A
G

E
 F

O
R

 M
A

IL
IN

G

O
F

F
IC

E
 S

U
P

P
L

IE
S

A
L

L
E

Y
W

A
Y

 C
L

E
A

N
U

P

A
g
e
n
d
a
 I
te

m
 7

B
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 1
0

, 
2

0
2
1

 -
 P

a
g

e
 8

 o
f 

5
6



Payroll�Summary�Report

Board�of�Directors�-�Agenda�Date�February�10,�2021

(*)

Gross�Wages 1/16/2021 1/30/2021

Regular� $27,207.10 $27,207.07

Overtime�Wages $492.15 $267.06

Stand�By $600.00 $450.00

Gross�Wages $28,299.25 $27,924.13

Cell�Phone�Allowance $0.00 $75.00

Total�Wages $28,299.25 $27,999.13

Disbursements

Net�Wages $22,023.72 $21,165.25

State�and�Federal�Agencies $4,290.97 $4,843.88

CalPERS�-�Normal $5,378.41 $5,378.41

SEIU�-�Union�Fees $156.80 $156.80

Total�Disbursements�processed�with�Payroll $31,849.90 $31,544.34

Health�(Disbursed�with�reoccurring�bills) $6,204.70 $6,204.70

Total�District�Payroll�Related�Costs $38,054.60 $37,749.04

(*)�Previously�reported�in�prior�Board�Meeting�packet�-�provided�for�comparison.

Agenda Item 7B February 10, 2021 - Page 9 of 56



Board�Member�Stipend�Summary�Report

Board�of�Directors�-�Agenda�Date�February�10,�2021

Gross�Stipends 1/31/2021

Board�Member�Stipends $900.00

Gross�Stipends $900.00

Disbursements

Net�Stipends $831.15

State�and�Federal�Agencies $137.70

Total�Disbursements�processed�with�Stipends $968.85

Agenda Item 7B February 10, 2021 - Page 10 of 56



8.1�Each�Director�is�authorized�to�receive�one�hundred�dollars�($100.00)�as�compensation�for�each�regular�or�

special�meeting�of�the�Board�and�fifty�dollars�($50.00)�for�each�committee�meeting�attended�by�him�or�her.

8.2�In�no�event�shall�Director�compensation�exceed�one�hundred�dollars�($100.00)�per�day.

8.3�Director�compensation�shall�not�exceed�six�hundred�($600.00)�in�any�one�(1)�calendar�month.

Agenda Item 7B February 10, 2021 - Page 11 of 56



8.1�Each�Director�is�authorized�to�receive�one�hundred�dollars�($100.00)�as�compensation�for�each�regular�or�

special�meeting�of�the�Board�and�fifty�dollars�($50.00)�for�each�committee�meeting�attended�by�him�or�her.

8.2�In�no�event�shall�Director�compensation�exceed�one�hundred�dollars�($100.00)�per�day.

8.3�Director�compensation�shall�not�exceed�six�hundred�($600.00)�in�any�one�(1)�calendar�month.

Agenda Item 7B February 10, 2021 - Page 12 of 56



Agenda Item 7B February 10, 2021 - Page 13 of 56



Agenda Item 7B February 10, 2021 - Page 14 of 56



Agenda Item 7B February 10, 2021 - Page 15 of 56



Agenda Item 7B February 10, 2021 - Page 16 of 56



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

C
O

P
IE

R
 L

E
A

S
E

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 M
O

N
IT

O
R

U
T

IL
IT

Y

F
IE

L
D

 C
E

L
L

 S
V

C

A
g
e
n
d
a
 I
te

m
 7

B
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 1

0
, 

2
0

2
1

 -
 P

a
g

e
 1

7
 o

f 
5

6



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

� �
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

 I
N

S
U

R
A

N
C

E

A
g
e
n
d
a
 I
te

m
 7

B
F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 1

0
, 

2
0

2
1

 -
 P

a
g

e
 1

8
 o

f 
5

6



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: February 10, 2021 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Carey Casciola, Business and Accounting Manager  

Subject: Agenda Item #7(C): Approval of a grant agreement with the Integrated Waste Management 
Authority for the Technical Assistance Grant Program and a budget adjustment in the Garbage Fund 
in the amount of $10,000 from grant revenues and $10,000 from contingencies reserves 

Recommendation 

 
It is recommended that your Board: 
 
1. Approve and authorize the General Manager to sign the attached grant agreement between the Integrated 

Waste Management Authority (IWMA) and the District for the Technical Assistance Grant (TAG) Program. 
2. Approve a budget adjustment in the Garbage fund of $10,000 from grant revenues and $10,000 from 

contingencies reserves. 

Discussion 

The District continues to move forward with the goal of providing programs that support eliminating 

waste in our community.  On August 26, 2020, your Board directed staff to apply for the IWMA’s TAG Program 

and the District was awarded the full $10,000 in grant revenues.  The attached agreement requires an in-kind 

match of $10,000 from Garbage Fund contingencies reserves.  Once the agreement has been approved staff will 

move forward with procuring quotes for the dual trash/ recycling receptacle and water refill stations.  

Other Agency Involvement 

The San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority. 

Other Financial Considerations 

Under the TAG Program an in-kind contribution match is required of $10,000.  The Garbage fund 

contingencies will decrease to $27,598 with the corresponding budget adjustment. 

Results 

Obtaining IWMA grant revenues to help fund OCSD efforts improves the fiscal resources available to the 

community. 

Attachments:  Grant Agreement 

Agenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 19 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

��

�

�5�17���5��0�17�

�
EHW�HHQ�

7KH�6DQ�/�LV�2ELVSR��R�QW��,QWHJUDWHG�:DVWH�0DQDJHPHQW���WKRULW��

DQG�

�UDQWHH�

�

�

7�LV�$JUHHPHQW�LV�PDGH�DQG�HQWHUHG�LQWR�W�LV�BBBBBBBB�GD��RI�BBBBBBBBBB��������E��DQG�EHW�HHQ�W�H�6$1�

/8,6�2%,632�&2817<�,17(*5$7('�:$67(�0$1$*(0(17�$87�25,7<��,:0$���D�MRLQW�SR�HUV�DXW�RULW��

IRUPHG�SXUVXDQW�WR�W�H�OD�V�RI�W�H�6WDWH�RI�&DOLIRUQLD�DQG�*UDQWHH�2FHDQR�&RPPXQLW��6HUYLFHV�'LVWULFW��

� :,71�66�7��

:�HUHDV��W�H�6DQ�/XLV�2ELVSR�&RXQW��,QWHJUDWHG�:DVWH�0DQDJHPHQW�$XW�RULW���,:0$��FUHDWHG�W�H�

7HF�QLFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�*UDQW��7$*��3URJUDP�WR�HPSR�HU�ORFDO�JURXSV�DQG�F�DQJH�DJHQWV�WR�GHYHORS�FRPPXQLW��

EDVHG�VWUDWHJLHV�IRU�W�H�SUHYHQWLRQ��VHSDUDWLRQ��GLYHUVLRQ��UHF�FOLQJ��DQG�FRPSRVWLQJ�RI�PDWHULDO�LQ�6DQ�/XLV�

2ELVSR�&RXQW���DQG�

:�HUHDV��LQ�RU�DERXW�-XO��RI������VWDII�UHOHDVHG�7$*�SURJUDP�JXLGHOLQHV��LW��DQ�DSSOLFDWLRQ�IRUP��DQG��

:�HUHDV��VSHFLDO�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ��DV�JLYHQ�WR�SURMHFWV���LF���RXOG�IDFLOLWDWH�W�H�LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ�RI�QH��

UHJXODWLRQV�SUHVFULEHG�E��W�H�6WDWH�RI�&DOLIRUQLD��DQG��

:�HUHDV��&RQWUDFWRU�VXEPLWWHG�D�UHVSRQVLYH�DSSOLFDWLRQ���LF���DV�UHYLH�HG��VFRUHG�DJDLQVW�GHILQHG�

FULWHULD��DQG��RQ�1RYHPEHU�����������DSSURYHG�IRU�D�DUG�E��W�H�,:0$�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV��

12:��7�(5()25(��EDVHG�RQ�W�HLU�PXWXDO�SURPLVHV��FRYHQDQWV��DQG�FRQGLWLRQV��W�H�SDUWLHV��HUHE��DJUHH�

DV�IROOR�V��

��� 352-��7�

&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�SHUIRUP�DOO�DFWLYLWLHV�DQG��RUN�QHFHVVDU��WR�LPSOHPHQW�DQG�FRPSOHWH�W�H�SURMHFW�VHW�

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 20 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

��

IRUW��LQ�W�H�6WDWHPHQW�RI�*UDQW�2EOLJDWLRQV���LF��LV�LQFRUSRUDWHG��HUHLQ�DV�(��LELW�$���&RQWUDFWRU�DJUHHV�WR�

IXUQLV��DOO�ODERU��PDWHULDOV��HTXLSPHQW��OLFHQVHV��SHUPLWV��IHHV��DQG�RW�HU�LQFLGHQWDOV�QHFHVVDU��WR�SHUIRUP�DQG�

FRPSOHWH��SHU�VF�HGXOH��LQ�D�SURIHVVLRQDO�PDQQHU��W�H�VHUYLFHV�GHVFULEHG��HUHLQ���&RQWUDFWRU�UHSUHVHQWV�W�DW�

&RQWUDFWRU��DV�W�H�H�SHUWLVH�QHFHVVDU��WR�DGHTXDWHO��SHUIRUP�W�H�SURMHFW�VSHFLILHG�LQ�(��LELW�$��

,Q�W�H�HYHQW�RI�DQ��FRQIOLFW�EHW�HHQ�RU�DPRQJ�W�H�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��W�H�H��LELW�

LQFRUSRUDWHG��HUHLQ��DQG�W�H�GRFXPHQWV�UHIHUUHG�WR�DQG�LQFRUSRUDWHG��HUHLQ��VXF��FRQIOLFW��LOO�EH�UHVROYHG�E��

JLYLQJ�SUHFHGHQFH�LQ�W�H�IROOR�LQJ�RUGHU�RI�SULRULW���

$�� 7�H�WH�W�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

%�� (��LELW�$�WR�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

&�� 7HF�QLFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�*UDQW��7$*��3URJUDP�2YHUYLH��

8QOHVV�VWULFWHU�FRPSOLDQFH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DUH�GHILQHG�E��,WHPV�$�DQG�%�LQ�W�H�OLVW�DERYH��W�HQ�W�H�SURMHFW��LOO�

FRPSO���LW��W�H�UHTXLUHPHQWV�HVWDEOLV�HG�LQ�,WHP�&��

��� 3�5,2��2��3�5�250�1���7,0�7��/��

&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�FRPPHQFH�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI��RUN�DQG�SURGXFH�DOO��RUN�SURGXFWV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH��LW��W�H�

�RUN�VF�HGXOH�DQG�GHDGOLQHV�IRU�SHUIRUPDQFH�LGHQWLILHG�LQ�(��LELW�$��6WDWHPHQW�RI�*UDQW�2EOLJDWLRQV��XQOHVV�W�LV�

$JUHHPHQW�LV�WHUPLQDWHG�VRRQHU�DV�SURYLGHG�IRU�HOVH��HUH�LQ�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

��� �2175��725�5�48,5�0�176�

$�� &RQWUDFWRU�PXVW�EH�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH��LW��DOO�)HGHUDO��6WDWH�DQG�ORFDO�ODQG�XVH��UHJXODWRU���DQG�SHUPLW�

UHTXLUHPHQWV��

%�� ,I�&RQWUDFWRU�LV�D�SULYDWH��QRQSURILW�RUJDQL�DWLRQ��SURRI�RI�)HGHUDO�WD��H�HPSW�VWDWXV�XQGHU�6HFWLRQ�

�����F��LV�UHTXLUHG��

&�� ,I�&RQWUDFWRU�LV�D�IRU�SURILW�HQWLW���D�YDOLG�EXVLQHVV�OLFHQVH�LV�UHTXLUHG��

'�� &RQWUDFWRU�LV�UHTXLUHG�WR�FRPSOHWH�DQG�VXEPLW�WR�,:0$�D�:���IRUP��

��� �48,30�17�5�48,5�0�176�

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 21 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

��

����,QVWDOODWLRQ���&RQWUDFWRU��DUUDQWV�W�DW�W�H�LQVWDOODWLRQ�RI�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW��LOO�EH�SHUIRUPHG�

LQ�D�PDQQHU�FRQVLVWHQW��LW��W�H�PDQXIDFWXUHU�V�VSHFLILFDWLRQV�DQG�VXF��W�DW�LW�GRHV�QRW�YRLG�W�H��DUUDQW��LHV��

SURYLGHG�E��W�H�PDQXIDFWXUHU�RI�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW��QRU�DQ��UHPDLQLQJ��DUUDQW��LHV��SURYLGHG�E��W�H�

PDQXIDFWXUHU�RI�W�H�EDVH�HTXLSPHQW�LQWR���LF��W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�LV�LQVWDOOHG��

����0DLQWHQDQFH���&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�PDLQWDLQ�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�SHU�W�H�PDQXIDFWXUHU�V��ULWWHQ�

VSHFLILFDWLRQV��

����2SHUDWLRQ���&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�RSHUDWH�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�SHU�W�H�PDQXIDFWXUHU�V��ULWWHQ�

VSHFLILFDWLRQV��$Q��JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�OHDVHG��UHQWHG��RU�SXUF�DVHG�PXVW�EH�XVHG�IRU�LWV�LQWHQGHG�SXUSRVH�

IRU�DW�OHDVW�W�R������HDUV�IURP�LQVWDOODWLRQ��

����0RGLILFDWLRQ���&RQWUDFWRU�LV�UHTXLUHG�WR�FRQGXFW�URXWLQH�PDLQWHQDQFH�DQG�UHSDLU�DV�QHHGHG���$OO�

FRPSRQHQWV�UHSODFHG�DV�SDUW�RI�URXWLQH�PDLQWHQDQFH�DQG�RU�UHSDLU�PXVW�FRPSO���LW��W�H�RULJLQDO�LQVWDOOHG�

JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�FRQILJXUDWLRQ�DQG�PDQXIDFWXUHU�V�VSHFLILFDWLRQV��

��� 3�5�250�1���

� 7�H��DVWH�UHGXFWLRQV�IXQGHG�E��W�LV�SURMHFW�PXVW�EH�UHDO��TXDQWLILDEOH��DQG�UHSRUWDEOH���3URMHFWV�PXVW�EH�

ORFDWHG�LQVLGH�6DQ�/XLV�2ELVSR�&RXQW���GLYHUW�GLVFDUGHG�PDWHULDOV�JHQHUDWHG�LQ�6DQ�/XLV�2ELVSR�&RXQW���RU�

LQYROYH�HGXFDWLRQDO�FDPSDLJQV�WDUJHWLQJ�6DQ�/XLV�2ELVSR�&RXQW��UHVLGHQWV�RU�EXVLQHVVHV���

��� 5��25��.��3,1���1��5�3257,1��

��� 5HFRUGV���&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�NHHS�DQG�SURYLGH�WR�(�HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�RU�W�HLU�GHVLJQHH�V��XSRQ�UHTXHVW��

DFFXUDWH�ILQDQFLDO�UHFRUGV��LQFOXGLQJ�LQYRLFHV�DQG�SXEOLV�HG�SULFH�OLVWV��QHFHVVDU��WR�HQDEOH�W�H�UHYLH��RI�

&RQWUDFWRU�V�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW���7�HVH�UHFRUGV�PXVW�GHPRQVWUDWH�W�DW�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGLQJ��DV�EHHQ�

XVHG�IRU�W�H�SXUF�DVH�RI�HTXLSPHQW�DQG�RU�SURYLVLRQ�RI�VHUYLFHV�DV�GHVFULEHG�LQ�(��LELW�$��6WDWHPHQW�RI�*UDQW�

2EOLJDWLRQV��WR�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW���&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�PDLQWDLQ�DOO�VXF��UHFRUGV�IRU�DW�OHDVW�W�UHH������HDUV�IURP�W�H�

H�SLUDWLRQ�RI�W�H�WHUP�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

��� 5HSRUWV���&RQWUDFWRU�DJUHHV�WR�SURYLGH�4XDUWHUO��,QYRLFH�5HSRUWLQJ�DV�SHU�WLPHWDEOH�GHVFULEHG�LQ�

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 22 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

��

(��LELW�$��6WDWHPHQW�RI�*UDQW�2EOLJDWLRQV��WR�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

��� 3UHVHQWDWLRQ���&RQWUDFWRU�DJUHHV�WR�SUHSDUH�D�EULHI������PLQXWH��VOLGHV�R��SUHVHQWDWLRQ�IRU�W�H�

,:0$�%RDUG��LI�UHTXHVWHG�WR�GR�VR�E��W�H�(�HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU��WR�LOOXVWUDWH�W�H�RXWFRPHV�RI�W�H�SURJUDP�DQG�W�H�

EHQHILW�RI�W�H�7HF�QLFDO�$VVLVWDQW�*UDQW�LQ�PHHWLQJ�SURMHFW�JRDOV��

��� �203�16�7,21�

7�H�WRWDO�REOLJDWLRQ�RI�,:0$�XQGHU�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��LOO�QRW�H�FHHG����������

����3D�PHQWV���2QO��H�SHQGLWXUHV�LQFXUUHG�E��&RQWUDFWRU�LQ�W�H�GLUHFW�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�

�LOO�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�E��,:0$�LQ�W�H�4XDUWHUO��,QYRLFH�5HSRUWLQJ���&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�SURYLGH�LQYRLFHV�DQG�VXSSRUWLQJ�

UHFRUGV�WR�W�H�,:0$�TXDUWHUO��LQ�DFFRUGDQFH��LW��W�H�VF�HGXOH�VSHFLILHG�LQ�(��LELW�$�WR�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

&RSLHV�RI�DOO�LQYRLFHV�VXSSRUWLQJ�H�SHQVHV�SDLG��LW��JUDQW�IXQGV��LOO�EH�VXEPLWWHG�WR�W�H�6DQ�/XLV�

2ELVSR�&RXQW��,QWHJUDWHG�:DVWH�0DQDJHPHQW�$XW�RULW�������2VRV�6WUHHW��6DQ�/XLV�2ELVSR��&$��������$WWHQWLRQ��

,:0$�$FFRXQWDQW�RU�YLD�HPDLO�WR�%DUEDUD�$VSHUQHOVRQ��EDVSHUQHOVRQ�L�PD�FRP��

(OLJLEOH�H�SHQVHV�WR�EH�SDLG�E��&RQWUDFWRU�XQGHU�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��LOO�LQFOXGH�DOO�VDOHV�DQG�XVH�WD�HV�

LQFXUUHG�SXUVXDQW�WR�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��LI�DQ���LQFOXGLQJ�DQ��VXF��WD�HV�GXH�RQ�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�SXUF�DVHG�

E��&RQWUDFWRU��

����6�USO�V���QGV���$Q��SDUW�D�SD�PHQW�E��,:0$�WR�&RQWUDFWRU����LF��LV�QRW�XWLOL�HG�IRU�DQ��UHDVRQ�E��

&RQWUDFWRU�WR�SD��FRVWV�SXUVXDQW�WR�W�H�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW���LOO�EH�UHIXQGHG�WR�,:0$�

�LW�LQ����GD�V�DIWHU�W�H�HQG�RI�W�H�3URMHFW�&RPSOHWLRQ�WHUP�DV�GHILQHG�LQ�(��LELW�$�WR�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

��� 121��//2��7,21�2���81�6�

7�H�WHUPV�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�DQG�W�H�VHUYLFHV�WR�EH�SURYLGHG�W�HUHXQGHU�DUH�FRQWLQJHQW�RQ�W�H�DSSURYDO�

DQG�DSSURSULDWLRQ�RI�IXQGV�E��W�H�,:0$�%RDUG���6�RXOG�VXIILFLHQW�IXQGV�QRW�EH�DOORFDWHG��W�H�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG�

PD��EH�PRGLILHG�RU�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�PD��EH�WHUPLQDWHG�DW�DQ��WLPH�E��,:0$�DIWHU�JLYLQJ�&RQWUDFWRU�W�LUW�������

GD�V��QRWLFH�LQ��ULWLQJ��

�

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 23 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

��

��� ,1��3�1��17��2175��725�

,Q�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�W�H��RUN��GXWLHV��DQG�REOLJDWLRQV�DVVXPHG�E��&RQWUDFWRU�XQGHU�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��LW�LV�

PXWXDOO��XQGHUVWRRG�DQG�DJUHHG�W�DW�&RQWUDFWRU��LQFOXGLQJ�DQ��DQG�DOO�RI�&RQWUDFWRU�V�RIILFHUV��DJHQWV��DQG�

HPSOR�HHV���LOO�DW�DOO�WLPHV�EH�DFWLQJ�DQG�SHUIRUPLQJ�DV�DQ�LQGHSHQGHQW�FRQWUDFWRU�DQG��LOO�DFW�LQ�DQ�

LQGHSHQGHQW�FDSDFLW��DQG�QRW�DV�DQ�RIILFHU��DJHQW��VHUYDQW��HPSOR�HH��MRLQW�YHQWXUHV��SDUWQHU��RU�DVVRFLDWH�RI�

,:0$���)XUW�HUPRUH��H�FHSW�IRU�UHTXLUHPHQWV�VSHFLILFDOO��VWDWHG�LQ�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��,:0$��LOO��DYH�QR�ULJ�W�WR�

FRQWURO��VXSHUYLVH�RU�GLUHFW�W�H�PDQQHU�RU�PHW�RG�E����LF��&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�SHUIRUP�LWV��RUN�DQG�IXQFWLRQ���

�R�HYHU��,:0$��LOO�UHWDLQ�W�H�ULJ�W�WR�DGPLQLVWHU�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�VR�DV�WR�YHULI��W�DW�&RQWUDFWRU�LV�SHUIRUPLQJ�LWV�

REOLJDWLRQV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH��LW��W�H�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�W�HUHRI���&RQWUDFWRU�DQG�,:0$��LOO�FRPSO���LW��DOO�

DSSOLFDEOH�SURYLVLRQV�RI�OD��DQG�W�H�UXOHV�DQG�UHJXODWLRQV��LI�DQ���RI�JRYHUQPHQWDO�DXW�RULWLHV��DYLQJ�MXULVGLFWLRQ�

RYHU�PDWWHUV�W�H�VXEMHFW�W�HUHRI��

%HFDXVH�RI�LWV�VWDWXV�DV�DQ�LQGHSHQGHQW�FRQWUDFWRU��&RQWUDFWRU��LOO��DYH�DEVROXWHO��QR�ULJ�W�WR�

HPSOR�PHQW�ULJ�WV�DQG�EHQHILWV�DYDLODEOH�WR�,:0$�HPSOR�HHV���&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�EH�VROHO��OLDEOH�DQG�UHVSRQVLEOH�

IRU�SURYLGLQJ�WR��RU�RQ�EH�DOI�RI��LWVHOI�DOO�OHJDOO��UHTXLUHG�HPSOR�HH�EHQHILWV���,Q�DGGLWLRQ��&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�EH�

VROHO��UHVSRQVLEOH�DQG��ROG�,:0$��DUPOHVV�IURP�DOO�PDWWHUV�UHODWLQJ�WR�SD�PHQW�RI�&RQWUDFWRU�V�HPSOR�HHV��

LQFOXGLQJ�FRPSOLDQFH��LW��VRFLDO�VHFXULW����LW��ROGLQJ��DQG�DOO�RW�HU�UHJXODWLRQV�JRYHUQLQJ�VXF��PDWWHUV���,W�LV�

DFNQR�OHGJHG�W�DW�GXULQJ�W�H�WHUP�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��&RQWUDFWRU�PD��EH�SURYLGLQJ�VHUYLFHV�WR�RW�HUV�XQUHODWHG�

WR�,:0$�RU�WR�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

����7�50,1�7,21�

�����UHDFK�RI��JUHHPHQW���,:0$�PD��LPPHGLDWHO��VXVSHQG�RU�WHUPLQDWH�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��LQ���ROH�RU�

LQ�SDUW��IRU�DQ��RI�W�H�IROOR�LQJ�UHDVRQV��

��� $Q�LOOHJDO�RU�LPSURSHU�XVH�RI�IXQGV��

��� $�IDLOXUH�WR�FRPSO���LW��DQ��WHUP�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

��� $�VXEVWDQWLDOO��LQFRUUHFW�RU�LQFRPSOHWH�UHSRUW�VXEPLWWHG�WR�,:0$��

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 24 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

��

��� ,PSURSHUO��SHUIRUPHG�VHUYLFHV��RU�

��� &RQWUDFWRU�EUHDF�HV�DQ��UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�W�H�3URJUDP�*XLGHOLQHV��

,Q�QR�HYHQW��LOO�DQ��SD�PHQW�E��,:0$�FRQVWLWXWH�D��DLYHU�E��(�HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�RU�W�HLU�GHVLJQHH�V��RI�

DQ��EUHDF��RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�RU�DQ��GHIDXOW���LF��PD��W�HQ�H�LVW�RQ�W�H�SDUW�RI�&RQWUDFWRU��QRU��LOO�VXF��

SD�PHQW�LPSDLU�RU�SUHMXGLFH�DQ��UHPHG��DYDLODEOH�WR�(�HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�RU�W�HLU�GHVLJQHH�V���LW��UHVSHFW�WR�W�H�

EUHDF��RU�GHIDXOW��

� ,Q�W�H�HYHQW�W�DW�&RQWUDFWRU�LV�UHTXLUHG�WR�PDNH�D�UHSD�PHQW�SXUVXDQW�WR�DQ��RW�HU�SURYLVLRQ�RI�W�LV�

$JUHHPHQW��W�H�UHSD�PHQW�DPRXQW��LOO�EH�HTXDO�WR�W�H�WRWDO�DPRXQW�VSHFLILHG�LQ�3DUDJUDS������&RPSHQVDWLRQ����

DERYH��RU�W�H�DFWXDO�JUDQW�IXQGLQJ�DPRXQW��LI�OHVV���OHVV�DQ�DPRXQW�HTXDO�WR�W�H�UDWLR�RI�W�H�QXPEHU�RI�PRQW�V�

W�DW�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW��DV�RSHUDWHG�VLQFH�W�H�3URMHFW�&RPSOHWLRQ��WR�W�H�VSHFLILHG�3URMHFW�

,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ�WHUP��LQ�PRQW�V��VSHFLILHG�LQ�(��LELW�$���WLPHV�W�H�DFWXDO�JUDQW�IXQGLQJ�DPRXQW���7�LV�DPRXQW�LV�

DOVR�GHVFULEHG�LQ�W�H�IROOR�LQJ�UHSD�PHQW�HTXDWLRQ��

*UDQW�5HSD�PHQW�$PRXQW� �$�����%���&����$��

:�HUH��

$� �$FWXDO�JUDQW�IXQGLQJ�DPRXQW��

%� �1XPEHU�RI�PRQW�V�W�DW�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW��DV�RSHUDWHG�VLQFH�W�H�3URMHFW�

&RPSOHWLRQ��DQG�

&� �7RWDO�QXPEHU�RI�PRQW�V�LQ�W�H�3URMHFW�,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ�WHUP��

,Q�DGGLWLRQ�WR�LPPHGLDWH�VXVSHQVLRQ�RU�WHUPLQDWLRQ��(�HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�RU�W�HLU�GHVLJQHH�V��PD��LPSRVH�

DQ��RW�HU�UHPHGLHV�DYDLODEOH�DW�OD���LQ�HTXLW���RU�RW�HU�LVH�VSHFLILHG�LQ�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

����:LWKR�W��D�VH���(LW�HU�SDUW��PD��WHUPLQDWH�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�DW�DQ��WLPH�DIWHU�JLYLQJ�W�H�RW�HU�SDUW��

DW�OHDVW�W�LUW�������GD�V�DGYDQFH��ULWWHQ�QRWLFH�RI�LQWHQWLRQ�WR�WHUPLQDWH��8SRQ�VXF��WHUPLQDWLRQ��DOO�W�H��RUN��LI�

DQ���SURGXFHG�E��&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�EH�SURPSWO��GHOLYHUHG�WR�,:0$���$GGLWLRQDO�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�PD��DSSO��LQ�

W�H�HYHQW�RI�WHUPLQDWLRQ�E��&RQWUDFWRU��DV�LGHQWLILHG�LQ�3DUDJUDS�����%���7HUPLQDWLRQ���RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 25 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

��

����02�,�,��7,21�

$Q��PDWWHUV�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�PD��EH�PRGLILHG�IURP�WLPH�WR�WLPH�E��W�H��ULWWHQ�FRQVHQW�RI�DOO�W�H�

SDUWLHV��LW�RXW�LQ�DQ���D��DIIHFWLQJ�W�H�UHPDLQGHU��

����121��66,�10�17�

1HLW�HU�SDUW���LOO�DVVLJQ��WUDQVIHU��RU�VXEFRQWUDFW�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��QRU�W�HLU�ULJ�WV�RU�GXWLHV�XQGHU�W�LV�

$JUHHPHQW���LW�RXW�W�H�SULRU�H�SUHVV���ULWWHQ�FRQVHQW�RI�W�H�RW�HU�SDUW���

���� ,1��01,�,��7,21�

&RQWUDFWRU�DJUHHV�WR�LQGHPQLI���VDYH���ROG��DUPOHVV��DQG�DW�,:0$�V�UHTXHVW��GHIHQG�,:0$��LWV�ERDUGV��

FRPPLWWHHV��UHSUHVHQWDWLYHV��RIILFHUV��DJHQWV��DQG�HPSOR�HHV�IURP�DQG�DJDLQVW�DQ��DQG�DOO�FRVWV�DQG�H�SHQVHV�

�LQFOXGLQJ�UHDVRQDEOH�DWWRUQH�V��IHHV�DQG�OLWLJDWLRQ�FRVWV���GDPDJHV��OLDELOLWLHV��FODLPV��DQG�ORVVHV����HW�HU�LQ�

FRQWUDFW��WRUW��RU�VWULFW�OLDELOLW���LQFOXGLQJ��EXW�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR��SHUVRQDO�LQMXU���GHDW���DQG�SURSHUW��GDPDJH��

RFFXUULQJ�RU�UHVXOWLQJ�WR�,:0$���LF��DULVHV�IURP�DQ��QHJOLJHQW�RU��URQJIXO�DFWV�RU�RPLVVLRQV�RI�&RQWUDFWRU��LWV�

RIILFHUV��DJHQWV��VXEFRQWUDFWRUV��RU�HPSOR�HHV�LQ�W�HLU�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

���� ,1685�1���

����3ROLF��7�SHV���:LW�RXW�OLPLWLQJ�,:0$�V�ULJ�W�WR�REWDLQ�LQGHPQLILFDWLRQ�IURP�&RQWUDFWRU�RU�DQ��W�LUG�

SDUWLHV��&RQWUDFWRU��DW�LWV�VROH�H�SHQVH���LOO�PDLQWDLQ�LQ�IXOO�IRUFH�DQG�HIIHFW�W�H�IROOR�LQJ�LQVXUDQFH�SROLFLHV�

W�URXJ�RXW�W�H�WHUP�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

��� &RPSUH�HQVLYH�JHQHUDO�OLDELOLW��LQVXUDQFH��LQFOXGLQJ�SHUVRQDO�LQMXU��OLDELOLW���EODQNHW�FRQWUDFWXDO�

OLDELOLW���DQG�EURDG�IRUP�SURSHUW��GDPDJH�OLDELOLW��FRYHUDJH��7�H�FRPELQHG�VLQJOH�OLPLW�IRU�

ERGLO��LQMXU��DQG�SURSHUW��GDPDJH��LOO�EH�QRW�OHVV�W�DQ�������������DQG�

��� $XWRPRELOH�ERGLO��LQMXU��DQG�SURSHUW��GDPDJH�OLDELOLW��LQVXUDQFH�FRYHULQJ�R�QHG��QRQ�R�QHG��

UHQWHG��DQG��LUHG�FDUV��7�H�FRPELQHG�VLQJOH�OLPLW�IRU�ERGLO��LQMXU��DQG�SURSHUW��GDPDJH��LOO�EH�

QRW�OHVV�W�DQ�������������DQG�

��� 6WDWXWRU���RUNHUV��FRPSHQVDWLRQ�DQG�HPSOR�HU�V�OLDELOLW��LQVXUDQFH�DV�UHTXLUHG�E��6WDWH�OD���

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 26 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

��

�����HUWLILFDWHV�DQG��QGRUVHPHQWV���3ULRU�WR�W�H�H�HFXWLRQ�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�SURYLGH�

FHUWLILFDWLRQV�RI�LQVXUDQFH�RQ�W�H�IRUHJRLQJ�SROLFLHV��DV�UHTXLUHG��HUHLQ��WR�,:0$��VWDWLQJ�W�DW�VXF��LQVXUDQFH�

FRYHUDJH��DV�EHHQ�REWDLQHG�DQG�LV�LQ�IXOO�IRUFH���&RQWUDFWRU�V�OLDELOLW��DQG�DXWRPRELOH�LQVXUDQFH��LOO�

HQGRUVH�QDPH�W�H�,:0$��LWV�RIILFHUV��DJHQWV�DQG�HPSOR�HHV��LQGLYLGXDOO��DQG�FROOHFWLYHO���DV�DGGLWLRQDO�LQVXUHG�

DQG�RU�ORVV�SD�HH��EXW�RQO��LQVRIDU�DV�W�H�HTXLSPHQW�SURYLGHG�XQGHU�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW���6XF��FRYHUDJH�IRU�

DGGLWLRQDO�LQVXUHG��LOO�DSSO��DV�SULPDU��LQVXUDQFH��DQG�DQ��RW�HU�LQVXUDQFH�PDLQWDLQHG�E��,:0$��LWV�RIILFHUV��

DJHQWV��DQG�HPSOR�HHV���LOO�EH�H�FHVV�RQO��DQG�QRW�FRQWULEXWLQJ��LW��LQVXUDQFH�SURYLGHG�XQGHU�&RQWUDFWRU�V�

SROLFLHV��HUHLQ���7�LV�LQVXUDQFH��LOO�QRW�EH�FDQFHOHG�RU�F�DQJHG��LW�RXW�D�PLQLPXP�RI�W�LUW�������GD�V�DGYDQFH��

�ULWWHQ�QRWLFH�JLYHQ�WR�,:0$��

����5HSHUF�VVLRQV�IRU�/DFN�RI��RYHUDJH���,Q�W�H�HYHQW�&RQWUDFWRU�IDLOV�WR�NHHS�LQ�HIIHFW�DW�DOO�WLPHV�

LQVXUDQFH�FRYHUDJH�DV��HUHLQ�SURYLGHG��,:0$�PD���LQ�DGGLWLRQ�WR�RW�HU�UHPHGLHV�LW�PD���DYH��VXVSHQG�RU�

WHUPLQDWH�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�XSRQ�W�H�RFFXUUHQFH�RI�VXF��HYHQW��

�����8�,76��1��5��25��5�7�17,21�

������GLWV���&RQWUDFWRU�DJUHHV�W�DW��������������������RU�W�HLU�GHVLJQDWHG�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�V����LOO��DYH�DQ�

DEVROXWH�ULJ�W�RI�DFFHVV�WR�DOO�RI�W�H�&RQWUDFWRU�V�UHFRUGV�SHUWDLQLQJ�WR�W�H�JUDQW��DQG�W�H�ULJ�W�WR�LQWHUYLH��DQ��

HPSOR�HHV���R�PLJ�W�UHDVRQDEO��EH�EHOLHYHG�WR��DYH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHODWHG�WR�VXF��UHFRUGV��WR�FRS��RU�FRQGXFW�

UHYLH�V�DQG�RU�DXGLWV��5HFRUGV�LQFOXGH�EXW�DUH�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR�W�RVH�GRFXPHQWV�EHORQJLQJ�WR�W�H�&RQWUDFWRU��LWV�

VXEFRQWUDFWRUV��YHQGRUV��DQG�DQ��HQWLW��UHFHLYLQJ�EHQHILW�IURP�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGV��7�HVH�UHFRUGV��LOO�EH�PDGH�

DYDLODEOH�WR�W�H�GHVLJQDWHG�DXGLWRU�V���LW�LQ���GD�V�RI�UHTXHVW��,I��DIWHU�DXGLW�RU�UHYLH���W�H�DXGLWRU�GHWHUPLQHV�

W�DW�IXQGV�SURYLGHG�WR�&RQWUDFWRU�SXUVXDQW�WR�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��HUH�QRW�VSHQW�LQ�FRQIRUPDQFH��LW��W�LV�

$JUHHPHQW��RU�DQ��RW�HU�DSSOLFDEOH�SURYLVLRQV�RI�OD���&RQWUDFWRU�DJUHHV�WR�LPPHGLDWHO��UHLPEXUVH�WR�,:0$�DOO�

IXQGV�GHWHUPLQHG�WR��DYH�EHHQ�VSHQW�QRW�LQ�VDLG�FRQIRUPDQFH��&RQWUDFWRU�PD��DOVR�EH�UHTXLUHG�WR�IRUIHLW�DQ��

XQH�SHQGHG�SRUWLRQ�RI�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGV��

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 27 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

��

����5HFRUG�5HWHQWLRQ���&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�UHWDLQ�DOO�UHFRUGV�DQG�GDWD�IRU�DFWLYLWLHV�SHUIRUPHG�XQGHU�W�LV�

$JUHHPHQW�IRU�DW�OHDVW�W�UHH������HDUV�IURP�W�H�H�SLUDWLRQ�RI�W�H�WHUP�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�RU�XQWLO�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�

DQ��DFWLRQ�DQG�UHVROXWLRQ�RI�DOO�LVVXHV���LF��PD��DULVH�DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�DQ��OLWLJDWLRQ��FODLP��QHJRWLDWLRQ��RU�DXGLW��

��LF�HYHU�LV�ODWHU��

����127,��6�

7�H�SHUVRQV�DQG�W�HLU�DGGUHVVHV��DYLQJ�DXW�RULW��WR�JLYH�DQG�UHFHLYH�QRWLFHV�XQGHU�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�DUH�

DV�IROOR�V��

�2175��725� � ,:0��

2FHDQR�&RPPXQLW��6HUYLFHV�'LVWULFW�

&DUH��&DVFLROD��%XVLQHVV���$FFRXQWLQJ�0DQDJHU�

�����)URQW�6W�

2FHDQR��&$�������

&DUH��RFHDQRFVG�RUJ�

���������������

6DQ�/XLV�2ELVSR�&RXQW��,QWHJUDWHG�:DVWH�

0DQDJHPHQW�$XW�RULW��

%DUEDUD�$VSHUQHOVRQ��0�%�$���$FFRXQWDQW�

����2VRV�6WUHHW�

6DQ�/XLV�2ELVSR��&$�������

EDVSHUQHOVRQ�L�PD�FRP�

���������������

�

$Q��DQG�DOO�QRWLFHV�EHW�HHQ�,:0$�DQG�&RQWUDFWRU�SURYLGHG�IRU�RU�SHUPLWWHG�XQGHU�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�RU�

E��OD���LOO�EH�LQ��ULWLQJ�DQG��LOO�EH�GHHPHG�GXO��VHUYHG���HQ�SHUVRQDOO��GHOLYHUHG�WR�RQH�RI�W�H�SDUWLHV��RU�LQ�

OLHX�RI�VXF��SHUVRQDO�VHUYLFH����HQ�GHSRVLWHG�LQ�W�H�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�PDLO��SRVWDJH�SUHSDLG��DGGUHVVHG�WR�VXF��

SDUW��RU�YLD�HPDLO��

&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�QRWLI��W�H�,:0$�LQ��ULWLQJ�SURPSWO���EXW�LQ�QR�HYHQW�PRUH�W�DQ�W�LUW��GD�V�DIWHU�W�H�

RFFXUUHQFH�RI�DQ��RI�W�H�IROOR�LQJ�F�DQJHV��

$�� &�DQJH�LQ�W�H�FRQWDFW�QDPH��DGGUHVV��FLW��RU�VWDWH�V�R�Q�DERYH��

%�� &�DQJH�LQ�W�H�IRUP�RI�W�H�RUJDQL�DWLRQ��VXF��DV�IURP�DQ�LQGLYLGXDO�WR�D�FRUSRUDWLRQ���

&�� &�DQJH�LQ�&RQWUDFWRU�V�&�LHI�(�HFXWLYH�2IILFHU��&�LHI�)LQDQFLDO�2IILFHU��RU�RW�HU�UHVSRQVLEOH�SDUW���

'�� 6DOH�RU�PHUJHU�RI�&RQWUDFWRU�V�EXVLQHVV��

(�� *RYHUQPHQWDO�VHL�XUH�RI�RU�OHY��XSRQ�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW��

)�� &HVVDWLRQ�RI�&RQWUDFWRU�V�EXVLQHVV�RSHUDWLRQV���

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 28 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

���

*�� $�SD�PHQW�RQ�DQ��ORDQ�W�DW�LV�VHFXUHG�E��W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�LV�PRUH�W�DQ����GD�V�SDVW�

GXH��

��� &RQWUDFWRU�UHFHLYHV�QRWLFH�W�DW�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW��LOO�EH�UHSRVVHVVHG��RU�

,�� %DQNUXSWF��RI�&RQWUDFWRU�RU�DQ��RI�LWV�SULQFLSDOV��

����32/,7,��/���7,9,7��352�,�,7���

1RQH�RI�W�H�IXQGV��PDWHULDOV��SURSHUW���RU�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG�XQGHU�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��LOO�EH�XVHG�IRU�DQ��

SROLWLFDO�DFWLYLW���RU�WR�IXUW�HU�W�H�HOHFWLRQ�RU�GHIHDW�RI�DQ��FDQGLGDWH�IRU�SXEOLF�RIILFH��

����/2���,1��352�,�,7���

1RQH�RI�W�H�IXQGV�SURYLGHG�XQGHU�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��LOO�EH�XVHG�IRU�SXEOLFLW���OREE�LQJ��RU�SURSDJDQGD�

SXUSRVHV�GHVLJQHG�WR�VXSSRUW�RU�GHIHDW�OHJLVODWLRQ�EHIRUH�W�H�&RQJUHVV�RI�W�H�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�RI�$PHULFD�RU�W�H�

/HJLVODWXUH�RI�W�H�6WDWH�RI�&DOLIRUQLD��

�����21�/,�7�2��,17�5�67�

1R�RIILFHU��HPSOR�HH��RU�DJHQW�RI�,:0$���R�H�HUFLVHV�DQ��IXQFWLRQ�RU�UHVSRQVLELOLW��IRU�SODQQLQJ�DQG�

FDUU�LQJ�RXW�W�H�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG�XQGHU�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��LOO��DYH�DQ��GLUHFW�RU�LQGLUHFW�SHUVRQDO�ILQDQFLDO�

LQWHUHVW�LQ�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW���&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�FRPSO���LW��DOO�IHGHUDO�DQG�VWDWH�FRQIOLFW�RI�LQWHUHVW�OD�V��VWDWXWHV��

DQG�UHJXODWLRQV����LF���LOO�EH�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�DOO�SDUWLHV�DQG�EHQHILFLDULHV�XQGHU�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�DQG�DQ��RIILFHU��

DJHQW��RU�HPSOR�HH�RI�,:0$��

����121�,6�5,0,1�7,21�

'XULQJ�W�H�WHUP�RI�W�LV�*UDQW�$JUHHPHQW��&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�QRW�XQOD�IXOO��GLVFULPLQDWH�DJDLQVW���DUDVV�RU�

DOOR���DUDVVPHQW��DJDLQVW�DQ��HPSOR�HH�RU�DSSOLFDQW�IRU�HPSOR�PHQW�EHFDXVH�RI�VH���VH�XDO�RULHQWDWLRQ��UDFH��

FRORU��UHOLJLRXV�FUHHG��PDULWDO�VWDWXV��QDWLRQDO�RULJLQ��DQFHVWU���S��VLFDO�GLVDELOLW���LQFOXGLQJ��,9�DQG�$,'6���PHQWDO�

GLVDELOLW���PHGLFDO�FRQGLWLRQ��FDQFHU�JHQHWLF�F�DUDFWHULVWLFV���DJH��RYHU������RU�DOOR��GHQLDO�RI�IDPLO��FDUH��

PHGLFDO�FDUH��RU�SUHJQDQF��GLVDELOLW��OHDYH�RU�UHDVRQDEOH�DFFRPPRGDWLRQ���&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�HQVXUH�W�DW�W�H�

HYDOXDWLRQ�DQG�WUHDWPHQW�RI�W�HLU�HPSOR�HHV�DQG�DSSOLFDQWV�IRU�HPSOR�PHQW�DUH�IUHH�RI�VXF��GLVFULPLQDWLRQ�DQG�

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 29 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

���

�DUDVVPHQW���&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�FRPSO���LW��W�H�SURYLVLRQV�RI�W�H�)DLU�(PSOR�PHQW�DQG��RXVLQJ�$FW��*RY��&RGH�

VHFWLRQ��������D�I��HW�VHT���DQG�W�H�DSSOLFDEOH�UHJXODWLRQV�SURPXOJDWHG�W�HUHXQGHU��&DOLIRUQLD�&RGH�RI�

5HJXODWLRQV��WLWOH����VHFWLRQ��������HW�VHT�����7�H�DSSOLFDEOH�UHJXODWLRQV�RI�W�H�)DLU�(PSOR�PHQW�DQG��RXVLQJ�

&RPPLVVLRQ�LPSOHPHQWLQJ�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH�VHFWLRQ��������D�I���VHW�IRUW��LQ�&�DSWHU���RI�'LYLVLRQ���RI�WLWOH���RI�

W�H�&DOLIRUQLD�&RGH�RI�5HJXODWLRQV��DUH�LQFRUSRUDWHG�LQWR�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�E��UHIHUHQFH�DQG�PDGH�D�SDUW��HUHRI�DV�

LI�VHW�IRUW��LQ�IXOO���&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�JLYH��ULWWHQ�QRWLFH�RI�W�HLU�REOLJDWLRQV�XQGHU�W�LV�FODXVH�WR�ODERU�RUJDQL�DWLRQV�

�LW����LF��W�H���DYH�D�FROOHFWLYH�EDUJDLQLQJ�RU�RW�HU�DJUHHPHQW��

�����29�51,1��/�:�

7�LV�$JUHHPHQW��LOO�EH�JRYHUQHG�LQ�DOO�UHVSHFWV�E��W�H�OD�V�RI�W�H�6WDWH�RI�&DOLIRUQLD���9HQXH�IRU�DQ��

DFWLRQ�DULVLQJ�RXW�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��LOO�RQO��EH�LQ�6DQ�/XLV�2ELVSR�&RXQW���&DOLIRUQLD��

�����,1�,1��21�68���66256�

7�LV�$JUHHPHQW��LQFOXGLQJ�DOO�FRYHQDQWV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�FRQWDLQHG��HUHLQ���LOO�EH�ELQGLQJ�XSRQ�DQG�LQXUH�

WR�W�H�EHQHILW�RI�W�H�SDUWLHV��LQFOXGLQJ�W�HLU�UHVSHFWLYH�VXFFHVVRUV�LQ�LQWHUHVW��DVVLJQV��DQG�OHJDO�UHSUHVHQWDWLYHV��

����7,0��,6�2��7����66�1���

,W�LV�XQGHUVWRRG�W�DW�IRU�&RQWUDFWRU�V�SHUIRUPDQFH�XQGHU�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��WLPH�LV�RI�W�H�HVVHQFH���7�H�

SDUWLHV�UHDVRQDEO��DQWLFLSDWH�W�DW�&RQWUDFWRU��LOO��WR�W�H�UHDVRQDEOH�VDWLVIDFWLRQ�RI�,:0$��FRPSOHWH�DOO�DFWLYLWLHV�

SURYLGHG��HUHLQ��LW�LQ�W�H�WLPH�VF�HGXOH�RXWOLQHG�LQ�W�H�H��LELW�WR�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��SURYLGHG�W�DW�&RQWUDFWRU�LV�

QRW�FDXVHG�XQUHDVRQDEOH�GHOD��LQ�VXF��SHUIRUPDQFH��

������7��2:1�56�,3�

8SRQ�WHUPLQDWLRQ�RU�H�SLUDWLRQ�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��DOO�GDWD���LF��LV�UHFHLYHG��FROOHFWHG��SURGXFHG��RU�

GHYHORSHG�E��&RQWUDFWRU�XQGHU�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��LOO�EHFRPH�W�H�H�FOXVLYH�SURSHUW��RI�,:0$��SURYLGHG��R�HYHU��

&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�EH�DOOR�HG�WR�UHWDLQ�D�FRS��RI�DQ��QRQ�FRQILGHQWLDO�GDWD�UHFHLYHG��FROOHFWHG��SURGXFHG��RU�

GHYHORSHG�E��&RQWUDFWRU�XQGHU�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��VXEMHFW�WR�,:0$�V�H�FOXVLYH�R�QHUV�LS�ULJ�WV�VWDWHG��HUHLQ���

$FFRUGLQJO���&RQWUDFWRU��LOO��LI�UHTXHVWHG��VXUUHQGHU�WR�,:0$�DOO�VXF��GDWD���LF��LV�LQ�LWV�SRVVHVVLRQ��LQFOXGLQJ�

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 30 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

���

LWV�VXEFRQWUDFWRUV�RU�DJHQWV����LW�RXW�DQ��UHVHUYDWLRQ�RI�ULJ�W�RU�WLWOH��QRW�RW�HU�LVH�HQXPHUDWHG��HUHLQ���,:0$�

�LOO��DYH�W�H�ULJ�W�DW�UHDVRQDEOH�WLPHV�GXULQJ�W�H�WHUP�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�WR�LQVSHFW�DQG�UHSURGXFH�DQ��GDWD�

UHFHLYHG��FROOHFWHG��SURGXFHG��RU�GHYHORSHG�E��&RQWUDFWRU�XQGHU�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW���1R�UHSRUWV��SURIHVVLRQDO�

SDSHUV��LQIRUPDWLRQ��LQYHQWLRQV��LPSURYHPHQWV��GLVFRYHULHV��RU�GDWD�REWDLQHG��SUHSDUHG��DVVHPEOHG��RU�

GHYHORSHG�E��&RQWUDFWRU��SXUVXDQW�WR�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW���LOO�EH�UHOHDVHG�RU�PDGH�DYDLODEOH��H�FHSW�WR�,:0$��

�LW�RXW�SULRU��H�SUHVV��ULWWHQ�DSSURYDO�RI�,:0$���LOH�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�LV�LQ�IRUFH��

����12�7�,5��3�57����1��,�,�5,�6�

1RW�LW�VWDQGLQJ�DQ�W�LQJ�HOVH�VWDWHG�WR�W�H�FRQWUDU���HUHLQ��LW�LV�XQGHUVWRRG�W�DW�&RQWUDFWRU�V�VHUYLFHV�

DQG�DFWLYLWLHV�XQGHU�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�DUH�EHLQJ�UHQGHUHG�RQO��IRU�W�H�EHQHILW�RI�,:0$��DQG�QR�RW�HU�SHUVRQ��ILUP��

FRUSRUDWLRQ��RU�HQWLW���LOO�EH�GHHPHG�DQ�LQWHQGHG�W�LUG�SDUW��EHQHILFLDU��RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

����6�9�5��,/,7��

,Q�W�H�HYHQW�W�DW�DQ��RQH�RU�PRUH�RI�W�H�SURYLVLRQV�FRQWDLQHG�LQ�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��LOO�IRU�DQ��UHDVRQ�EH�

�HOG�WR�EH�XQHQIRUFHDEOH�LQ�DQ��UHVSHFW�E��D�FRXUW�RI�FRPSHWHQW�MXULVGLFWLRQ��VXF���ROGLQJ��LOO�QRW�DIIHFW�DQ��

RW�HU�SURYLVLRQV�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��DQG�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��LOO�W�HQ�EH�FRQVWUXHG�DV�LI�VXF��XQHQIRUFHDEOH�

SURYLVLRQV�DUH�QRW�D�SDUW��HUHRI��

����7,7/��72��48,30�17�

7LWOH�WR�DQG�ULVN�RI�ORVV�RI�HTXLSPHQW�SXUF�DVHG��LW��IXQGV�UHFHLYHG�W�URXJ��W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��LOO�DW�DOO�

WLPHV�YHVW�LQ�DQG��LW��&RQWUDFWRU����

&RQWUDFWRU�DFNQR�OHGJHV�W�DW�,:0$�GLG�QRW�VXSSO���GHVLJQ�RU�PDQXIDFWXUH�W�H�HTXLSPHQW�RU�DQ��RI�LWV�

FRPSRQHQWV���7�LV�HTXLSPHQW�LV�FRPPHUFLDOO��PDQXIDFWXUHG�DQG�VROG�E��D�PDQXIDFWXUHU�WR�EH�GHWHUPLQHG�E��

&RQWUDFWRU���,:0$�VSHFLILFDOO��GLVFODLPV�DOO��DUUDQWLHV��H�SUHVV�DQG�LPSOLHG��LQFOXGLQJ�W�H�LPSOLHG��DUUDQWLHV�RI�

PHUF�DQWDELOLW��DQG�ILWQHVV�IRU�W�H�LQWHQGHG�SXUSRVH��DV�WR�W�H�SXUF�DVHG�HTXLSPHQW��DQ��WHVW�HTXLSPHQW�RU�

ILHOG�WHVWV���,Q�QR�HYHQW��LOO�,:0$�EH�OLDEOH�WR�&RQWUDFWRU�RU�DQ��W�LUG�SDUW��IRU�DQ��GLUHFW��LQGLUHFW��FRQVHTXHQWLDO��

VSHFLDO��LQFLGHQWDO��RU�SXQLWLYH�GDPDJHV�IRU�W�H�GHVLJQ��PDQXIDFWXUH��RSHUDWLRQ��PDLQWHQDQFH��SHUIRUPDQFH��RU�

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 31 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

���

GHPRQVWUDWLRQ�RI�W�H�SXUF�DVHG�HTXLSPHQW�XQGHU�DQ��W�HRU���LQFOXGLQJ�EXW�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR��WRUW��FRQWUDFW��EUHDF��

RI��DUUDQW���RU�VWULFW�OLDELOLW���

����6��85,7��,17�5�67���

� )RU�W�H�GXUDWLRQ�RI�W�H�WHUP�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��&RQWUDFWRU�JUDQWV�WR�,:0$�D�ILUVW�SULRULW��VHFXULW��

LQWHUHVW�LQ�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�SXUF�DVHG�SXUVXDQW�WR�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��DQG�LQ�DOO�LPSURYHPHQWV��SDUWV�

DQG�DFFHVVRULHV�EHORQJLQJ�WR�W�H�HTXLSPHQW��DQG�DOO�VXEVWLWXWLRQV��UHSODFHPHQWV��SURGXFWV��SURFHHGV��VXF��DV�

LQVXUDQFH�SURFHHGV��DQG�DOO�DFFHVVLRQV�UHODWHG�WR�W�H�HTXLSPHQW��WR�VHFXUH�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�DOO�H�LVWLQJ�DQG�IXWXUH�

REOLJDWLRQV�RI�&RQWUDFWRU�XQGHU�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

����63��,�/��21�,7,216�

��� �JUHHPHQW��RPSOHWLRQ���7�H�HQWLUH�SURSRVHG�SURMHFW�PXVW�EH�FRPSOHWHG��LW�LQ�W�HQW��IRXU������

PRQW�V�RI�IXQGLQJ�RI�W�H�D�DUG���

��� 7HUPLQDWLRQ���&RQWUDFWRU�PD��WHUPLQDWH�LWV�REOLJDWLRQ�WR�RSHUDWH�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�IRU�

JRRG�FDXVH�SURYLGHG�W�DW�&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�UHLPEXUVH�W�H�,:0$�EDVHG�RQ�W�H�UHSD�PHQW�HTXDWLRQ�VSHFLILHG�LQ�

3DUDJUDS�������7HUPLQDWLRQ���RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW���1RWLFH�RI�WHUPLQDWLRQ��LOO�EH�SURYLGHG�LQ��ULWLQJ�DQG��LOO�EH�

HIIHFWLYH�XSRQ�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�W�H�WHUPV�RI�W�LV�3DUDJUDS����6XF��QRWLFH��LOO�WHUPLQDWH�&RQWUDFWRU�V�REOLJDWLRQ�

XQGHU�3DUDJUDS�V�����3URMHFW���DQG�����3HULRG�RI�3HUIRUPDQFH���7LPHWDEOH���RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

��� 2�QHUVKLS�7UDQVIHU�RU��DPDJH�WR��UDQW�I�QGHG��T�LSPHQW��

��� 7UDQVIHU�RI�2�QHUVKLS���,I�R�QHUV�LS�RI�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�LV�WR�EH�WUDQVIHUUHG�E��

&RQWUDFWRU��IRU�H�DPSOH��E��VDOH�RU�JLIW��GXULQJ�W�H�WHUP�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�QRWLI��W�H�,:0$�RI�

W�LV�IDFW�LQ��ULWLQJ�DW�OHDVW����GD�V�SULRU�WR�OLVWLQJ�RU�RW�HU�LVH�SUHSDULQJ�IRU�W�H�WUDQVIHU�RI�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�

HTXLSPHQW�DQG�EHJLQ��RUNLQJ��LW��W�H�,:0$�WR�SURPSWO��FRPSOHWH�RQH�RI�W�H�IROOR�LQJ�W�R�DYDLODEOH�RSWLRQV��

D�� &RQWUDFWRU��LOO�PDNH�FRPSOLDQFH��LW��W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�D��ULWWHQ�FRQGLWLRQ�RI�W�H�WUDQVIHU�DQG�D�QH��

$JUHHPHQW�EHW�HHQ�W�H�,:0$�DQG�W�H�QH��R�QHU�PXVW�EH�H�HFXWHG�DV�SDUW�RI�W�H�WUDQVIHU���8QGHU�W�LV�RSWLRQ��

WUDQVIHU�RI�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�FDQ�RQO��RFFXU��LW�LQ�6DQ�/XLV�2ELVSR�&RXQW����&RSLHV�RI�DOO�IRUPV�

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 32 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

���

SHUWDLQLQJ�WR�W�H�WUDQVIHU�RI�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW��LOO�EH�SURYLGHG�WR�W�H�,:0$��LW�LQ����GD�V�RI�W�H�

WUDQVIHU�DQG�W�H�IRUPV��LOO�UHIHU�WR�W�H�H�LVWHQFH�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�DQG�W�H�QH��$JUHHPHQW�LQ�W�H�VSDFH�

SURYLGHG�IRU�:DUUDQWLHV���$SSXUWHQDQFHV���/LPLWDWLRQV���(�FHSWLRQV��

E�� ,I�&RQWUDFWRU�HOHFWV�WR�WUDQVIHU�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�EHIRUH�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�W�H�REOLJDWLRQV�RI�

W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�DQG�W�H�QH��R�QHU�GRHV�QRW�HQWHU�LQWR�DQ�$JUHHPHQW��LW��W�H�,:0$��RU�LI�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�

HTXLSPHQW�LV�WUDQVIHUUHG�RXWVLGH�RI�6DQ�/XLV�2ELVSR�&RXQW���&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�UHSD��W�H�,:0$�EDVHG�RQ�W�H�

UHSD�PHQW�HTXDWLRQ�VSHFLILHG�LQ�3DUDJUDS�������7HUPLQDWLRQ���RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

��� �DPDJH���,I�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�LV�XQDEOH�WR�RSHUDWH�GXH�WR�GDPDJH�GXULQJ�W�H�WHUP�RI�

W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�QRWLI��W�H�,:0$�RI�W�LV�IDFW�LQ��ULWLQJ��LW�LQ����GD�V�DQG�EHJLQ��RUNLQJ��LW��W�H�

,:0$�WR�SURPSWO��FRPSOHWH�RQH�RI�W�H�W�R�RSWLRQV�OLVWHG�EHOR���

D�� &RQWUDFWRU��LOO��DYH�W�H�GDPDJHG�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�UHSDLUHG�E��DQ�DJHQW�W�DW�LV�DXW�RUL�HG�

E��W�H�PDQXIDFWXUHU�WR�FRPSOHWH�W�H�UHSDLUV���8VH�RI�DQ�XQDXW�RUL�HG�DJHQW�IRU�W�H�UHSDLU�PD��FRQVWLWXWH�D�

EUHDF��RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��DW�W�H�VROH�GLVFUHWLRQ�RI�W�H�(�HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU���'HSHQGLQJ�RQ�W�H�QHHGHG�UHSDLU�WLPH��

W�H�,:0$��LOO�GHWHUPLQH�LI�DQ�DPHQGPHQW�WR�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�LV�QHFHVVDU��WR�H�WHQG�W�H�WHUP�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�

WR�DFFRXQW�IRU�W�H�WLPH�W�DW�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�LV�RXW�RI�VHUYLFH���,Q�W�H�HYHQW�W�DW�VXF��DQ�DPHQGPHQW�

�RXOG�EH�QHFHVVDU��EXW�LV�QRW�SRVVLEOH��LW�LQ�W�H�FRQVWUDLQWV�RI�W�H�3URJUDP�*XLGHOLQHV�RU�RW�HU�DSSOLFDEOH�UXOHV�

RU�UHJXODWLRQV��W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�V�SHUIRUPDQFH�UHTXLUHPHQWV��LOO�EH�DGGUHVVHG�E��&RQWUDFWRU�UHSD�LQJ�W�H�,:0$�

D�SRUWLRQ�RI�W�H�JUDQW�DPRXQW�EDVHG�RQ�W�H�UHSD�PHQW�HTXDWLRQ�VSHFLILHG�LQ�3DUDJUDS�������7HUPLQDWLRQ���RI�

W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

E�� ,I�&RQWUDFWRU�HOHFWV�QRW�WR��DYH�W�H�GDPDJHG�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�UHSDLUHG��W�HQ�&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�

UHSD��W�H�,:0$�EDVHG�RQ�W�H�UHSD�PHQW�HTXDWLRQ�VSHFLILHG�LQ�3DUDJUDS�������7HUPLQDWLRQ���RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

�����17,5����5��0�17�

7�LV�$JUHHPHQW�FRQVWLWXWHV�W�H�HQWLUH�$JUHHPHQW�EHW�HHQ�&RQWUDFWRU�DQG�,:0$��LW��UHVSHFW�WR�W�H�

VXEMHFW�PDWWHU��HUHRI�DQG�VXSHUVHGHV�DOO�SUHYLRXV�QHJRWLDWLRQV��SURSRVDOV��FRPPLWPHQWV���ULWLQJV��

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 33 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

���

DGYHUWLVHPHQWV��SXEOLFDWLRQV��DQG�XQGHUVWDQGLQJV�RI�DQ��QDWXUH���DWVRHYHU�XQOHVV�H�SUHVVO��LQFOXGHG�LQ�W�LV�

$JUHHPHQW��

,1�:,71�66�:��5�2���W�H�SDUWLHV��HUHWR��DYH�FDXVHG�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�WR�EH�H�HFXWHG�DV�RI�W�H�GD��

DQG��HDU�ILUVW��HUHLQDERYH��ULWWHQ��

�2175��725� � ,:0��

2FHDQR�&RPPXQLW��6HUYLFHV�'LVWULFW� � 6$1�/8,6�2%,632�&2817<�

,17(*5$7('�:$67(�0$1$*(0(17�$87�25,7<�

:LOO�&OHPHQV��*HQHUDO�0DQDJHU� � %URRNV�6WD�HU��(�HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�

� � �

7D��,��'��1XPEHU��7D�,'� � �SSURYHG�DV�WR�OHJDO�IRUP��

� � �

� � -HIIUH��$��0LQQHU���,:0$�&RXQVHO�

�

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 34 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

���

(;�,%,7�$�

67$7(0(17�2)�*5$17�2%/,*$7,216�

���M�F�����F��������

�

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 35 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

���

�

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 36 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

���

�

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 37 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

���

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 38 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

���

�

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 39 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

���

�

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 40 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

���

�

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 41 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

���

���M�F�����������

&RQWUDFWRU�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�WR�SD��IRU�DOO�SURMHFW�H�SHQVHV��LQFOXGLQJ�SD�PHQW�LQ�IXOO�IRU�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�

HTXLSPHQW��DQG�DOO�IXWXUH�UHSDLU��PDLQWHQDQFH�DQG�RSHUDWLRQ�FRVWV�IRU�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW���7�H�JUDQW�

D�DUG��LOO�EH�SDLG�WR�&RQWUDFWRU�SHU�W�H�WHUPV�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW���&RQWUDFWRU�LV�UHO�LQJ�VROHO��RQ�&RQWUDFWRU�V�

R�Q�LQYHVWLJDWLRQ�DQG�GHFLVLRQ�IRU�W�H�VHOHFWLRQ�RI�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�DQG�SDUWV��DQG�W�HLU�LQVWDOODWLRQ��

�D�F�����������

7�H�DSSOLFDQW�PXVW�SURYLGH�DW�OHDVW�D�PDWF�LQJ�LQ�NLQG�FRQWULEXWLRQ��7�H�IXQGLQJ�D�DUG�IRU�W�LV�SURMHFW��LOO�QRW�

H�FHHG�����������&RVWV�LQFXUUHG�LQ�H�FHVV�RI����������RU�W�H�DFWXDO�D�DUG�DPRXQW��LI�OHVV���LOO�EH�ERUQH�E��

&RQWUDFWRU�DQG��LOO�FRQVWLWXWH�W�HLU�PDWF�LQJ�DQG�RU�LQ�NLQG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�IRU�W�H�SURMHFW��

�����E������������

7�H�HOLJLEOH�H�SHQVHV�LQFOXGH��

•� 7�H�SXUF�DVH��OHDVH��UHQWDO��DQG�RU�LQVWDOODWLRQ�SULFH�RI�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�

•� 6DOHV�WD��

•� 5HDVRQDEOH�GHOLYHU��F�DUJHV�

•� 0LQLPXP�DWWDF�PHQWV�QRUPDOO��VROG��LW��W�H�RULJLQDO�HTXLSPHQW��DV�GHWHUPLQHG�E��W�H�,:0$�

7�H�HOLJLEOH�H�SHQVHV�GR�QRW�LQFOXGH��

•� 3D�PHQW�IRU�DQ��DFWLYLWLHV�EHIRUH�FRQWUDFW�H�HFXWLRQ��

•� 3D�PHQW�RI�OHJDO�IHHV��ORDQV�RU�EDQN�IHHV��ILQHV�RU�SHQDOWLHV��

•� 3D�PHQW�RI�H�LVWLQJ�GHEW�RU�SUH�H�LVWLQJ�WD��OLHQV�RU�REOLJDWLRQV��

•� 6XEVLGL�LQJ�H�LVWLQJ�FRQWUDFWV��

•� )XQGLQJ�IRU�VWDII��IXOO�RU�SDUW�WLPH��LQ�H�FHVV�RI������

•� 3D�PHQW�RI�RUJDQL�DWLRQDO�RYHU�HDG�H�FHHGLQJ�����RI�SURMHFW�EXGJHW��

�

67�7�0�17�2��:25.��1��352-��7�7,0�/,1��

� ������D���������� ������ d����

� �������������� ���:������ ������D�

� ����������������s�������D�������Y��������������������Yh/����� ���������� ������D�

� ��������������������� ��������� ������D�

� ���������������������������������������� ��E������ �������D�

� ������������������������� ���E������ ������D�

� ������Y������������������������������� ���:������ ������D�

� �������Y������������������������������� ���������� ������D�

� d�����Y������������������������������� ���������� ������D�

� �������Y������������������������������� ���D������ ������D�

� ������Y���������������������������d��� ���:������ ������D�

� �������Y���������������������������d��� ���������� ������D�

� d�����Y���������������������������d��� ���������� ������D�

� �������Y���������������������������d��� ���D������ ������D�

� � � �

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 42 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

���

� ������������������������ � �
�

�

3URMHFW�&RPSOHWLRQ���7DVNV���WR���EHOR��V�RXOG�EH�FRPSOHWHG�DV�UDSLGO��DV�SRVVLEOH�EXW�PXVW�EH�FRPSOHWHG�

EHIRUH�W�H�HQG�RI�W�H�FRQWUDFW���

7DVN����$JUHHPHQW�DQG�,QVXUDQFH�'RFXPHQWDWLRQ���&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�VXEPLW�LQVXUDQFH�GRFXPHQWV��VHH�3DUDJUDS��

�����,QVXUDQFH���RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW���DQ��GRFXPHQWV�UHTXLUHG�SHU�3DUDJUDS������&RQWUDFWRU�5HTXLUHPHQWV����DQG�

VLJQHG�$JUHHPHQW�WR�W�H�,:0$���&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�QRW�FRPPHQFH�W�H�SURMHFW�RU�SXUF�DVH�RU�SXW�PRQH��GR�Q�RQ�

W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�XQWLO�W�H���DYH�UHFHLYHG�W�HLU�FRS��RI�W�H�H�HFXWHG�$JUHHPHQW�IURP�W�H�,:0$��

�

7DVN����*UDQW�$�DUG�3D�PHQW���:LW�LQ�ILIWHHQ������GD�V�RI�UHFHLSW�RI�W�H�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�RXWOLQHG�LQ�7DVN����W�H�

,:0$��LOO�SURFHVV�SD�PHQW�RI�W�H�JUDQW�D�DUG���3D�PHQW��LOO�EH�PDGH�WR�&RQWUDFWRU����R��LOO�EH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�

DQ��RXWVWDQGLQJ�GHEW�R�HG�RQ�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW��

�

7DVN����3XUF�DVH��'HOLYHU��DQG�3RVW�,QVSHFWLRQ�RI�*UDQW�)XQGHG�(TXLSPHQW���$IWHU�&RQWUDFWRU�UHFHLYHV�W�HLU�FRS��

RI�W�H�IXOO��H�HFXWHG�*UDQW�$JUHHPHQW�DQG�*UDQW�$�DUG�3D�PHQW��&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�RUGHU��SXUF�DVH��DQG�DUUDQJH�

IRU�W�H�GHOLYHU��DQG�RU�LQVWDOODWLRQ�RI�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�GHVFULEHG�DERYH��

$�� &RQWUDFWRU�PXVW�HQVXUH�W�DW�W�H�LQVWDOODWLRQ�RI�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�LV�SHUIRUPHG�LQ�D�PDQQHU�

FRQVLVWHQW��LW��W�H�PDQXIDFWXUHU�V�VSHFLILFDWLRQV�DQG�VXF��W�DW�LW�GRHV�QRW�YRLG�W�H��DUUDQW��LHV��

SURYLGHG�E��W�H�PDQXIDFWXUHU�RI�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW��QRU�DQ��UHPDLQLQJ��DUUDQW��LHV��SURYLGHG�

E��W�H�PDQXIDFWXUHU�RI�W�H�EDVH�HTXLSPHQW�LQWR���LF��JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�LV�LQVWDOOHG��

%�� 7�H�GDWH�RI�LQVWDOODWLRQ�RI�HTXLSPHQW�V�DOO�EH�UHSRUWHG�RQ�W�H�TXDUWHUO��UHSRUW�W�H�HTXLSPHQW��DV�

UHFHLYHG�DQG�LQVWDOOHG��

�

7DVN����4XDUWHUO��,QYRLFH�5HSRUWLQJ���4XDUWHUO���W�URXJ��W�H�WHUP�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�RU�DQ��DPHQGPHQWV�WR�LW��

DFFRUGLQJ�WR�W�H�4XDUWHUO��,QYRLFH�5HSRUWLQJ�&�DUW�EHOR���&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�SURYLGH�W�H�,:0$��LW��LQYRLFHV�IRU�

DQ��JUDQW�IXQGV�H�SHQGHG��7�H�SXUSRVH�RI�W�LV�UHSRUWLQJ�LV�WR�SURYLGH�W�H�,:0$��LW��IHHGEDFN�DV�WR�

&RQWUDFWRU�V�JUDQW�SURMHFW�VWDWXV�DQG�WR�SURYLGH�D�UHFRUG�RI�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGV�H�SHQGHG��

�

5HSHUF�VVLRQV�IRU�1RQ�FRPSOLDQFH���)DLOXUH�E��&RQWUDFWRU�WR�SURYLGH�4XDUWHUO��,QYRLFH�5HSRUWLQJ��LOO�

FRQVWLWXWH�D�EUHDF��RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��DQG�PD��UHVXOW�LQ�DQ��RU�DOO�RI�W�H�IROOR�LQJ�DFWLRQV��

•� �RPSOLDQFH���GLW���,:0$�RU�W�HLU�GHVLJQHH�V��PD���DW�W�HLU�GLVFUHWLRQ�DQG�DW�&RQWUDFWRU�V�H�SHQVH��

FRQGXFW�D�FRPSOLDQFH�DXGLW�RI�W�H�JUDQW�IXQGV�DQG�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW���&RQWUDFWRU�DJUHHV�WR�SD��

W�H�W�HQ�FXUUHQW�,:0$�ELOOLQJ�UDWHV�IRU�W�H�LQVSHFWRU�V�WLPH�DQG�PLOHDJH�IRU�DQ��FRPSOLDQFH�DXGLWV�VR�

FRQGXFWHG��

•� �JUHHPHQW�7HUPLQDWLRQ���,:0$�RU�W�HLU�GHVLJQHH�V��PD��VXVSHQG�RU�WHUPLQDWH�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��SHU�

3DUDJUDS�������7HUPLQDWLRQ���RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��DQG�GHPDQG�W�DW�&RQWUDFWRU�LPPHGLDWHO��UHSD��W�H�

JUDQW�IXQGV�EDVHG�RQ�W�H�UHSD�PHQW�HTXDWLRQ�VSHFLILHG�LQ�3DUDJUDS�������7HUPLQDWLRQ���RI�W�LV�

$JUHHPHQW��

•� 1R�3D�PHQWV�WR�1RQ�FRPSOLDQW��RQWUDFWRUV���,:0$��LOO�QRW�PDNH�JUDQW�D�DUG�SD�PHQWV�IRU�W�LV�RU�

DQ��RW�HU�JUDQW�SURMHFW�WR�D�&RQWUDFWRU���R�LV�LQ�EUHDF��RI�D�JUDQW�$JUHHPHQW���5HSHDWHG�JUDQW�

$JUHHPHQW�EUHDF�HV�PD��MHRSDUGL�H�&RQWUDFWRU�V�HOLJLELOLW��IRU�IXWXUH�JUDQW�IXQGLQJ��

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 43 of 56



3URMHFW�1R����2&6'������

�

�

�

���

•� ,Q�DGGLWLRQ�WR�W�H�DERYH�RSWLRQV��,:0$�RU�W�HLU�GHVLJQHH�V��PD��LPSRVH�DQ��RW�HU�UHPHGLHV�DYDLODEOH�

DW�OD���LQ�HTXLW���RU�RW�HU�LVH�VSHFLILHG�LQ�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��

�

7DVN����$QQXDO�,QVXUDQFH�&HUWLILFDWHV���$QQXDOO���W�URXJ��W�H�WHUP�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�RU�LWV�DPHQGPHQWV��DIWHU�W�H�

JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW�LV�LQ�RSHUDWLRQ��&RQWUDFWRU��LOO�VHQG�W�H�,:0$�XSGDWHG�LQVXUDQFH�FHUWLILFDWHV�W�DW�OLVW�

W�H�,:0$�DV�DGGLWLRQDOO��LQVXUHG��LW��UHVSHFW�WR�W�H�SROLFLHV�OLVWHG�LQ�3DUDJUDS�������,QVXUDQFH���RI�W�LV�

$JUHHPHQW��

���P���������P����

)RU�W�H�SXUSRVHV�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW��W�H�WHUP�RI�W�LV�$JUHHPHQW�LV�FRPSULVHG�RI�W�R�WLPHIUDPHV���3URMHFW�

&RPSOHWLRQ��DQG��3URMHFW�,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ���

�

$�� 3URMHFW��RPSOHWLRQ�LV�GHILQHG��HUHLQ�WR�EH�W�HQW��IRXU������PRQW�V�IURP�W�H�GDWH�RI�H�HFXWLRQ�RI�W�LV�

$JUHHPHQW�RU�W�H�GDWH�W�DW�&RQWUDFWRU�LQIRUPV�,:0$�RI�W�H�HQG�RI�W�HLU�SURYLVLRQ�RI�JUDQW�IXQGHG�

VHUYLFHV�RU�W�H�HQG�RI�W�HLU�XWLOL�DWLRQ�RI�JUDQW�IXQGHG�HTXLSPHQW����LF�HYHU�LV�HDUOLHU��

�

%�� 3URMHFW�,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ�LV�GHILQHG��HUHLQ�WR�EH���GD�V�IURP�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�7DVN���

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 44 of 56



�

�

�

Attachment - Draft Grant AgreementAgenda Item 7C February 10, 2021 - Page 45 of 56



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: February 10, 2021 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Will Clemens, General Manager 

 
   

 

 

  

  

   

  

 

  

 

   

     

   

 

      

       

       

  
 

     

    

     

  

   

 

Agenda Item 8A February 10, 2021 - Page 46 of 56

mirror more closely that of the City of Grover Beach. The proposed Ordinance implements that

  Direction was given at the January 13, 2021 Board meeting to revise the District Code to 

The District currently has no limitation as to when fireworks may be discharged.

the public discharge period.  The Cities’ limit the discharge period to one or two days per year. 
fireworks. The most  significant  difference  between  the  Cities’ regulations  and  the  District,  is 

  The Cities of Grover Beach and Arroyo Grande also allow for the sale of “Safe and Sane” 

• Op en Door  Pre-School

• The Five Cities Aerie No. 4153 F.O.E.

• The Church of God of Prophecy

• The Anchor of Faith Apostolic Church

permits each year. In 2020, the following organizations obtained approval from the District:

organizations  to  operate “Safe  and Sane” fireworks  stands. Adopted procedures provide four 
sane fireworks within the District. Annually, the District accepts and approves applications for 

  District Code 15.10, which was originally adopted  in 1991, governs the sale of safe and 
Discussion

Authorize the President to sign the attached letter to the County of San Luis Obispo2.

reading, and set a Public Hearing on February 24, 2021 to consider adopting the Ordinance; and

Introduce  the  attached  Ordinance which repeals  and  replaces District  Code  15.10,  wave  the 1.

It is recommended that your Board:

Recommendation

15.10 Sale of Fireworks

Subject: Agenda Item #8(A): Introduction of an Ordinance Repealing and Restating District Code



 Oceano Community Services District 

Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

direction and establishes a discharge period of 10 am through 10 pm on July 4th only.  This will 

provide consistency across municipal boundaries and will simplify the efforts of the Fire Chief of 

Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA).  Adopting a public discharge period will also assist the County 

Sheriff with enforcement efforts.   

 Direction was also given to draft a letter to the County (attached) which encourages the 

County to add a Social Host Liability for Fireworks section to the County Code like what has 

been adopted in Kern County. 

Other Agency Involvement 

 The FCFA Fire Chief is responsible for the safety of the stands.  The County Sheriff is 

responsible for enforcement relating to illegal discharge of fireworks in Oceano. 

Other Financial Considerations 

             Each applicant will be charged an administrative/application fee of $400 and a 

refundable clean-up fee of $500.  Each applicant must also provide a general liability and 

property damage insurance policy. 

Results 

 The sale of Safe and Sane fireworks in accordance with established regulations helps to 

ensure a safe and well governed community.  

 

Attachments: 

• Ordinance 

• Letter to County of San Luis Obispo 

Agenda Item 8A February 10, 2021 - Page 47 of 56



�

ORDINANCE�NO.�_______________�

�
AN�ORDINANCE�OF�THE�BOARD�OF�DIRECTORS�OF�THE�OCEANO�COMMUNITY�

SERVICES�DISTRICT�REPEALING�AND�REPLACING�DISTRICT�CODE�15.10�SALE�OF�
FIREWORKS�

�
BE�IT�RESOLVED,�DETERMINED�AND�ORDERED,�by�the�Board�of�Directors�of�the�District�as�
follows:�

�
SECTION�1�

�

15.10�–�SALE�OF�FIREWORKS�REPEALED�AND�
REPLACED�AS�FOLLOWS:�

�
�

15.10.010�Permit�Required�for�Sale;�Fee.��

�

It�is�unlawful�for�any�person�to�sell�any�"safe�and�sane"�fireworks,�as�defined�in�Section�12529�
and�Section�12562�of�the�Health�and�Safety�Code�without�first�having�applied�for�and�received�
a�permit� therefor.�The�fee�for�a�permit� to�sell�such�fireworks�will�be� initially�set� at� $400�and�
amended�from�time�to�time.�No�part�of�the�fee�shall�be�refunded�upon�revocation�of�the�permit.��
In�addition,�a�$500�refundable�cleaning�deposit�must�be�submitted�with�the�permit�fee�and�will�
be�refunded�upon�removal�of�the�fireworks�stand�and�associated�debris�to�the�satisfaction�of�
the�District.�

�

15.10.020�Application�for�Permit.��

�

Applications�for�a�permit�under�this�chapter�shall�be�made�to�the�General�Manager�or�General�
Manager’s�designee�and�shall:�

(A)� Be�made�in�writing�on�a�form�supplied�by�the�District�and�accompanied�by�a�tender�of�
the�permit�fee�and�cleaning�deposit.�

(B)� Be�made�after�the�second�Tuesday�in�April�of�each�year�and�before�the�last�business�day�
of�May.�

(C)� Describe�by�street�address�the�proposed�location�of�the�fireworks�stand�for�which�the�
permit�is�requested.�

(D)� Be�accompanied�by�a�general�liability�insurance�policy�of�at�least�$�1,000,000,�with�the�
premium�pre-paid,�for�a�term�not�less�than�the�term�of�the�permit,�naming�the�District,�its�officers,�
agents,� and� employees� as� additional� named� insured,� and� covering� liability� for� monetary�
damages�resulting�from�bodily�injury,�property�damage�or�personal�injury,�including�false�arrest,�
libel,�wrongful�entry,�discrimination,�and�assault.�

(E)� Be�accompanied�by�the�organization's�certified�statement�of�non-profit�status.�
(F)� Be�accompanied�by�an�assurance�in�writing�that�the�applicant,�if�permitted,�will�neither�

sell�nor�purvey,�nor�suffer�or�permit�any�person�to�sell�or�purvey�at�the�permittee's�fireworks�stand�
any�"dangerous�fireworks"�as�defined�in�section�12505�of�the�Health�and�Safety�Code.�

Attachment - Draft OrdinanceAgenda Item 8A February 10, 2021 - Page 48 of 56



�

(G)� Be�accompanied�by�a�signed�written�approval�of�property�owner� that� the� fireworks�
stand�shall�be�allowed�on�the�property�owner's�property�and�include�a�business�telephone�number�
at�which�the�property�owner�may�be�reached.�

(H)� Include�a�designation�of�all�non-profit�associations�or�corporations�to�which�the�applicant�
intends�to�distribute�the�net�proceeds�of�its�fireworks�sales�and�the�communities�(i.e.,�Oceano,�
Halcyon,�Grover�Beach,�Arroyo�Grande,�etc.)�and�residents�of�those�communities�(i.e.,�youth,�
seniors,� residents� at� large,� visitors,� businesses,� etc.)� that� will� benefit� from� the� non-profit�
association�or�corporation�through�the�net�proceeds�of�its�fireworks�sales�with�at�least�50%�of�
the�net�proceeds�distributed�within�Oceano/Halcyon.�

(I)� State� the�person�and�such�person's�daytime� telephone�number�which�the�General�
Manager� or� General� Manager’s�designee�shall�notify�regarding�the�granting�or�denial�of� the�
permit.�

�

15.10.030�Operation�of�Stand.�

�

(A)� No�person�other�than�the�permittee�shall�operate�the�stand�for�which�the�permit�is�
issued�or�share�or� otherwise�participate� in� the�profits�of� the�operation�of� such� stand�unless�
otherwise�approved�by�permit.�

(B)� No�person�other�than�the�individuals�who�are�members�or�volunteers�on�behalf�of�a�
permittee's�organization�shall�participate�in�the�operation�of�the�fireworks�stand.�

(C)� No�person�shall�be�paid�or�given�any�consideration�for�participating�in�the�operation�
of�a�fireworks�stand,�except�as�a�night�watchman.�

(D)� Fireworks�may�only�be�sold�at�the�stand�location�set�forth�in�the�permit.�

(E)� It�is�unlawful�for�any�person�to�sell�or�otherwise�distribute�fireworks�without�complying�
with�each�of�the�following�provisions:�

(1)� Fireworks�stands�need�not�comply�with�the�provisions�of�the�California�Building�
Code� provided� that� all� stands� are� erected� under� the� supervision� of� the� Fire� Chief� (or� his�
designee)�who� shall� require� that� stands� be� constructed� in�a� manner� which� will� reasonably�
assure�the�safety�of�attendants�and�patrons.�

(2)� If�in�the�judgment�of�the�Fire�Chief�(or�designee),�the�construction�or�the�location�of�
a�stand,�or�the�conduct�of�operations�therein�do�not�conform�with�the�provisions�of�this�Chapter,�
the�Fire�Chief�(or�designee)�may�order�the�stand�immediately�closed�until�such�time�as�the�stand�
does�conform�with�the�provisions�of�this�Chapter.�

(3)� If� the�permittee�has�materially� falsified�any�statement� in� the�application�or�has�
failed� to� perform� any�agreement,� assurance,�or� representation�made� in�connection�with� the�
application,�the�Fire�Chief�(or�designee)�shall�revoke�the�permit�and�order�the�stand�immediately�
closed�and�neither�the�permittee�nor�any�successor�to�the�permittee�shall�be�permitted�under�this�
Chapter�during�the�next�following�year.�Such�decision�shall�be�immediately�appealable�in�writing�
to�the�General�Manager�who�shall�conduct�an�informal�hearing�at�the�earliest�opportunity.�

(4)� The�front�of�all�stands�shall�be�completely�enclosed�from�the�counter�to�the�roof�
with�hardware�wire�cloth,�the�openings�of�which�do�not�exceed�one-fourth�inch�in�size�except�
for�openings�to�permit�delivery�of�merchandise�to�customers,�which�openings�for�delivery�are�not�
larger�than�twelve�inches�by�eighteen�inches�in�size�and�the�location�of�which�are�approved�by�
the�Fire�Chief�(or�designee).�

(5)� No� person� shall� be� allowed� in� the� interior� of� the� stand� except� those� directly�

Attachment - Draft OrdinanceAgenda Item 8A February 10, 2021 - Page 49 of 56



�

participating�in�its�operation.�
(6)� No�person�under�the�age�of�eighteen�years�shall�be�allowed�to�sell�fireworks,�work�

in�any�way,�unload�fireworks�supplies,�or�otherwise�be�in�the�stand�or�involved�in�its�operation.�
(7)� All�merchandise�shall�be�stored�or�displayed�at�a�safe�distance�from�the�front�and�

side�walls�of�the�stand�in�accordance�with�the�direction�of�the�Fire�Chief�(or�designee).�
(8)� No�stand�shall�be�constructed�which�has�a�depth�of�more�than�twelve�feet.�
(9)� Each�stand�more�than�twenty�feet�in�length�must�have�at�least�two�exits;�and�each�

stand�more�than�thirty�feet�in�length�must�have�at�least�three�exits�spaced�approximately�equally�
along�the�length�of�the�stand;�provided,�that�in�no�case�shall�the�distance�between�exits�exceed�
twenty�feet.�

(10)� Exit�doors�must�swing�in�the�direction�of�egress.�
(11)� Exits� shall� be� arranged� so� that� there� will� be� egress� available� in� at� least� two�

directions�from� any� place� within� the� stand,�which� exits� shall� be� approximately� diametrically�
opposed.�

(12)� The�stand�must�be�equipped�with�at�least�one�fire�extinguisher�and�one�five-gallon�
pail�of�water�at�each�exit.�The�fire�extinguisher�must�be�approved�as�to�efficiency,�adequacy,�and�
safety�by�the�Fire�Chief�(or�designee).�

(13)� No�stand�shall�be�located�closer�than�100�feet�from�any�other�stand.�
(14)� No�stand�shall�be�located�closer�than�ten�feet�from�a�property�line,�nor�closer�than�

thirty�feet�from�any�building,�nor�closer�than�ten�feet�from�any�structure�other�than�a�building.�
(15)� All�weeds�and�combustible�materials�shall�be�cleared�for�50�feet�surrounding� the�

stand.�

(16)� No�food,�beverage,�or�merchandise�other�than�fireworks�may�be�sold�in�or�within�
thirty� feet� surrounding� the� stand.�The� sale�of� fireworks� shall� not� begin� before�noon�on� the�
twenty-eighth�of�June�and�shall�cease�at�noon�on�the�fifth�day�of�July.� Sales�during�this�time�
period�shall�be�limited�to�9:00�a.m.�to�11:00�p.m.�each�day.�Any�permittee�failing�to�observe�
these�hours�designated�for�sale�may�have�their�permit�revoked�or�be�ineligible�for�a�permit�in�
subsequent�years.�

(17)� All�unsold�fireworks�stock�and�associated�litter�from�the�stand�shall�be�removed�
from�the�stand�location�by�noon�on�the�seventh�of�July.�

(18)� The�stand�shall�be�removed�from�its�temporary�location�by�noon�on�the�seventh�day�
of�July.�

(19)� The�permittee�shall�also�comply�with�all�applicable�State�laws�pertaining�to�the�
sale�of�fireworks�and�operation�of�the�stand.��

�

15.10.040�Number�of�Permits.��

�

No�association�may�receive�more�than�one�permit�for�fireworks�sales�during�any�one�calendar�
year.�No�association�shall�operate�more�than�one�fireworks�stand�under�permit�during�any�one�
calendar�year.�No�more�than�four�permits�shall�be�issued�by�the�District�in�any�calendar�year.�
Permit� holders� from� the�preceding� year�shall�have�the�right�of�first�refusal�for�one�(1)�permit.�
Remaining�permits�shall�be�issued�per�Section�15.10.050.��

� �

Attachment - Draft OrdinanceAgenda Item 8A February 10, 2021 - Page 50 of 56



�

�

15.10.050� Prerequisites� to� Issuance� of� Permit;� Selection� of� Permittee's;� and� Approval� of�
Locations.�

�
(A)� No�permit�shall�be�issued�except�to�an�applicant�who�is�a�non-profit�association�or�

corporation� organized�primarily�for�veteran,�patriotic,�welfare,�district�betterment,� religious�or�
charitable�purposes,�having�on�file�with�the�District�proof�of�non-profit�status�from�either�the�IRS,�
California� Secretary� of� State,� or� the� State� Attorney�General;� and� having� its� principal� and�
permanent�meeting�place�within�District�boundaries;�and�having�been�organized�and�established�
in�the�District�for�a�minimum�of�three�years�continuously�preceding�the�filing�of�the�application�for�
the�permit;�and�having�three�years�continuously�preceding�the�filing�of�the� application� for� the�
permit,�a�track�record�of�providing�programs�and/or�services�to�residents�of�the�District.�

(B)�If�on�the�closing�date�for�filing�applications�for�permits�there�are�more�applications�than�the�
number�of�permits�allowed,�the�permittees�shall�be�selected�by�a�drawing�conducted�by� the�
General�Manager�or�General�Manager’s�designee.�

(C)�Prior�to�the�installation�of�any�stand�for�which�a�permit�has�been�obtained,�the�General�
Manager�or�General�Manager’s�designee�shall�first�submit�the�proposed�location�of�each�stand�
to�the�to�the�Fire�Chief�who�has�the�authority�to�disapprove�the�location�if�in�the�Chief's�opinion�
the�location�would�pose�a�fire�hazard.��

�

15.10.060�Public�Discharge�Period.��

�

Discharge�of�"safe�and�sane�fireworks"�shall�only�occur�from�10:00�a.m.�to�10:00�p.m.��on�the�fourth�
of�July.� No�person�under�eighteen�(18)�years�of�age�may�possess�or�discharge�"safe� and�sane�
fireworks"�except�when�under�the�direct�supervision�of�a�person�twenty-one�(21)�years�of�age�or�
older.�

�
SECTION�2�

�
This�Ordinance�shall�take�effect�and�be�in�force�thirty�(30)�days�from�the�date�of�its�passage,�

and�before�the�expiration�of�fifteen�(15)�days�after�its�passage,�it�shall�be�posted�in�three�public�
places�with�the�names�of�the�members�of�the�Board�of�Directors�voting�for�and�against�the�same�
and�shall�remain�posted�thereafter�for�at�least�one�week.��

�
� �

Attachment - Draft OrdinanceAgenda Item 8A February 10, 2021 - Page 51 of 56



�

� INTRODUCED�at�a� regular� meeting� of� the� Board� of� Directors� held� on� the� 10th� day� of�
February,�2021,�and�PASSED,�APPROVED�and�ADOPTED� by� the�Board�of�Directors�of� the�
Oceano�Community�Services�District,�this____�day�of�__________,�2021,�by�the�following�roll�call�
vote,�to�wit:�
�
�

AYES:�
�
NOES:�

�
ABSENT:�

�
ABSTAINING:�

�
The�foregoing�ordinance�is�hereby�adopted:�

�
�
�

President�of�the�Board�of�Directors�

ATTEST:�
�
�
�

Secretary�of�the�Board�of�Directors��

BY:��� �

�
Board�Secretary�

�
�
[SEAL]�

�
�
APPROVED�AS�TO�FORM�AND�LEGAL�EFFECT:�

�
Jeffrey� Minnery� District�
Legal�Counsel�

�
By:�

�

�

District�Legal�Counsel��

Dated:�February�10,�2021�

Attachment - Draft OrdinanceAgenda Item 8A February 10, 2021 - Page 52 of 56



�����������������������������������
�����������������������������������������������������

������������������������y����������������

������������������

February 10, 2021 

t����,�������������������������������������

��������������������������

���������������������������

��������������������������

RE: Illegal Fireworks 

Dear Mr. Horton 

As you are aware, the topic of illegal fireworks is of great concern to many residents in the county.  Our 

District has received the same petition as the county from our mutual constituents calling for more enforcement 

related to the use of illegal fireworks.  In Oceano, enforcement related to illegal fireworks falls under the 

jurisdiction of the Sheriff’s Office.   

The Sheriff’s Office has indicated that many factors make enforcement of current laws related to illegal 

fireworks difficult.  One factor is that our District currently allows the use of “safe and sane” fireworks year-round 

and this makes it difficult to determine if fireworks are legal or illegal when discharged in Oceano.  Our District is 

currently working to remedy that situation by introducing an Ordinance that would limit the discharge period for 

“safe and sane” fireworks to July 4th only.  This will bring our District more into line with Ordinances in the 

neighboring Cities and should make the identification of illegal fireworks easier for the Sheriff. 

In addition, our Board strongly encourages the county to consider adding a Social Host Liability for 

Fireworks Section to the County Code.  We understand that this has worked well in providing another 

enforcement tool in Kern County and we have attached the Section of their Code for your reference.  We thank 

you for cooperating as our partner in addressing the issue of illegal fireworks in our community.  

Sincerely, 

 

LINDA AUSTIN 

President 

Attachment: Kern County Code 17.32.027 

cc:   Lynn Compton, District 4 Supervisor 

  Ian Parkinson, Sheriff�

Attachment - Letter to County of SLOAgenda Item 8A February 10, 2021 - Page 53 of 56



2/1/2021 Kern County, CA Code of Ordinances

1/3

17.32.027 - Section 110.4.2 added—Social Host Liability—Fireworks.

Section 110.4.2 is added to Chapter 1 DIVISION II ADMINISTRATION of the Kern County Fire Code is

amended to read as follows:

A. Findings, Intent and Purpose.

 1. Findings. The Board of Supervisors, pursuant to the police powers delegated to it by the

California Constitution, has the authority to enact laws which promote the public health,

safety and general welfare of its residents. The illegal possession, manufacture, storage, sale,

handling and use of fireworks, as described in Section 17.32.092 of this code, on private

property is harmful to and creates a threat to public health, safety, quiet enjoyment of

residential property and the general welfare. While the discharge of illegal fireworks can be

tied to a particular residence or property, it is often difficult to tell who at the residence or

property discharged the illegal firework(s). The owner or tenant of the premises is often in the

best position to control, and knows or should know of the possession, manufacture, storage,

sale, handling and use of illegal fireworks on his/her residence or commercial premises. The

Board of Supervisors finds that in too many cases, persons having possession or control of

private property where the illegal possession, manufacture, storage, sale, handling and use of

fireworks occurs, have failed to ensure that illegal fireworks are not possessed,

manufactured, stored, sold, handled or used on their property. Furthermore, problems

associated with the illegal possession, manufacture, storage, sale, handling and use of

fireworks are difficult to prevent and deter unless the fire chief, sheriff, or other designated

official of the county of Kern has the legal authority to cite the owner or tenant of the

premises where illegal fireworks are possessed, manufactured, stored, sold, handled or used.

 2. Intent. The intent of this section is to protect the public health, safety, quiet enjoyment of

residential property, and general welfare, rather than to punish. An ordinance that imposes

liability on property owners or tenants for allowing the possession, manufacture, storage,

sale, handling or use of illegal fireworks on their property is necessary to deter and prevent

such possession, manufacture, storage, sale, handling or use and to deter persons who

actively and passively aid, allow, or tolerate such activities on their property.

 3. Purposes. The purposes of this section are to protect the public health, safety and general

welfare, to deter the possession, manufacture, storage, sale, handling or use of illegal

fireworks, and to reduce the costs of providing police, fire, and other emergency response

services to areas where illegal fireworks are being possessed, manufactured, stored, sold,

handled or used. These purposes are implemented by the imposition of a civil money penalty

against social hosts (landowners or tenants) who actively or passively aid, allow or tolerate

the possession, manufacture, storage, sale, handling or use of illegal fireworks on their

property.

Attachment - Letter to County of SLOAgenda Item 8A February 10, 2021 - Page 54 of 56



2/1/2021 Kern County, CA Code of Ordinances

2/3

 4. Declaration. For these reasons, the Board of Supervisors declares that the possession,

manufacture, storage, sale, handling or use of illegal fireworks is a threat to the peace, health,

safety and general welfare of the public. Such actions constitute a public nuisance as they

affect at the same time the entire community of Kern County as well as the neighborhoods in

which they occur. The nuisance created thereby presents an immediate threat to the public

health and safety, warranting summary abatement by the fire chief, sheriff or other

designated county official under Government Code Section 25845, subdivision (a).

B. Definitions. For the purposes of this section, the following terms shall have the following

meanings:

 1. "Responsible person" means a person or persons with a right of possession of the

residence or other private property at which illegal fireworks are possessed, manufactured,

stored, handled or used, including but not limited to:

 a. Any owner of the residence or other private property, meaning the record owner of

the title to property as of the time of the possession, manufacture, storage, sale, handling

or use of illegal fireworks, wherever that person or entity resides at that time;

 b. A tenant or lessee of the residence or other private property at the time when illegal

fireworks are possessed, manufactured, stored, handled or used;

 c. The person(s) in charge of the residence or other private property at the time when

illegal fireworks are possessed, manufactured, stored, sold, handled or used;

 d. The person(s) who organizes, supervises, officiates, conducts or controls the

gathering or any other person(s) accepting responsibility for such a gathering where

illegal fireworks are possessed, manufactured, stored, sold, handled or used.

 A responsible person need not be present at the time illegal fireworks are possessed,

manufactured, stored, sold, handled or used in order for the county to impose civil money

penalties upon such responsible person. Prior knowledge of the possession, use,

manufacture, storage, sale, handling or use of illegal fireworks is not prerequisite to a finding

that any specific individual is a responsible person as defined by this section.

 2. "Residence" or "other private property" means a home, yard, apartment, condominium,

hotel or motel room, or other dwelling unit, or a hall, meeting room, office, land or building,

whether occupied on a temporary or permanent basis, whether occupied as a dwelling,

business, or location for parties or other social functions, and whether owned. Leased,

rented, or used with or without compensation.

Attachment - Letter to County of SLOAgenda Item 8A February 10, 2021 - Page 55 of 56



2/1/2021 Kern County, CA Code of Ordinances

3/3

 C. Responsibility for Proper Property Management. Every owner, occupant, lessee, tenant or

holder of any possessory interest of a residence or other private property within the county of

Kern is required to maintain, manage and supervise the property and all persons thereon in a

manner so as not to violate the provision of this section. The owner of the property may remain

liable for such violations regardless of any contract or agreement with any third party regarding

the property.

 D. Penalties for Violation.

 1. It is a civil violation of this section, and a public nuisance constituting an immediate threat

to public health and safety warranting summary abatement, for any responsible person to

conduct or allow illegal possession, manufacture, storage, sale, handling and use of fireworks

on his/her residential or other private property. Such a violation subjects any and all

responsible persons to the civil money penalties specified in Section 17.32.026, Paragraph B

of this code.

 2. In the event that a juvenile hosts a gathering at a residence or other private property at

which illegal possession, manufacture, storage, sale, handling and use of fireworks occurs,

then the parents or guardians of that juvenile will be jointly and severally liable for any

penalties incurred pursuant to this section.

 3. In the event that a juvenile is found to be a responsible person as defined by this section,

the juvenile may elect to serve in a community service program as specified in Section

17.32.026 of this code.

 4. The parents or guardians of a juvenile found to be a responsible person as defined by this

section, may also elect to have that juvenile serve in a community service program as

specified in Section 17.32.026 of this code.

(Ord. No. G-8866, § 12, 11-5-19)

Attachment - Letter to County of SLOAgenda Item 8A February 10, 2021 - Page 56 of 56


